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          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Good morning,

          3  ladies and gentlemen.  Thank you for your patience.

          4  We have three items on the agenda.  We are going to

          5  do the two items that I believe will take less time

          6  first, and then we will do the third item.

          7                 L.U. No. 635, Bronx Community Board

          8  2, 20055603 SCX, application pursuant to Section

          9  1732 of the New York State Public Authorities Law

         10  concerning the proposed siting of an intermediate

         11  high school facility at 922-928 Simpson Street.

         12                 Preconsider Queens Community Board 7,

         13  20065077 HKQ and 060167 HKQ, designation list No.

         14  368, LP-2160 by the Landmarks Preservation

         15  Commission pursuant to Section 3020 of the New York

         16  City Charter of the Fitzgerald/Ginsberg Mansions,

         17  located at 145-15 Bayside Avenue, Block 4786, Lot

         18  64.

         19                 We are going to deal with those items

         20  first.  Is there anyone from the Administration that

         21  wants to speak on those items, such as Diane

         22  Jackier?  Is there anyone else from the

         23  Administration that wants to speak on that item,

         24  specifically? The Ginsberg/Fitzgerald Mansion.

         25                 Okay, identify yourself for the
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          2  record.

          3                 Just before we continue, I want to

          4  introduce my colleagues who are here, Councilman

          5  Oliver Koppell who has been here for a very long

          6  time, Councilman Bill Perkins, and Councilman Leroy

          7  Comrie.  Thank you.  What?  Councilman Comrie says

          8  he was here first, but he was in Queens.  Did I get

          9  it right?  Okay, I did not want to misquote you.

         10                 MS. JACKIER:  Good morning Council

         11  members.  My name is Diane Jackier, Director of

         12  Community and Government Affairs with the Landmarks

         13  Preservation Commission.   I am here today to

         14  testify on the Commission's designation of the

         15  Fitzgerald/Ginsberg House in Queens.  On April 21,

         16  2005, the Commission held a public hearing on the

         17  proposed designation of the building.  Seven people

         18  spoke in favor, including a representative of

         19  Council Member John Liu, and representatives of the

         20  Historic Districts Council, and the Municipal Arts

         21  Society.

         22                 William Ginsberg, son of the longest

         23  term owners of the house, also testified in favor.

         24  There were no speakers in opposition.  On September

         25  20, 2005, the Commission voted to designate the
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          2  building a New York City Landmark.  The

          3  Fitzgerald/Ginsberg House is a rare 1920s neo-tudor

          4  style mansion in Flushing Queens.  The building

          5  features rusticated irregularly shaped fieldstone

          6  walls, a multi- colored slate roof, casement and

          7  leaded glass windows, and pictures massing.

          8                 Large suburban picturesque revival

          9  style houses from the 1920s were at one time

         10  prevalent throughout New York City's affluent

         11  residential outer neighborhoods, but have become

         12  increasingly rare.  The Fitzgerald House is one of

         13  the last great mansions from this period still

         14  standing in Flushing.

         15                 Built in 1924, to the design of

         16  architect John Oakman, the house represents the

         17  affluence and optimism of the 1920s.  It was built

         18  immediately adjacent to an extension of Flushing's

         19  old country club, and its golf course, a typical

         20  suburban pattern of those years.  The old country

         21  club founded in 1887 is credited as being one of the

         22  oldest, private country clubs in the United States.

         23  In 1902, the club built its own golf course, one of

         24  nine private clubs in New York City listed by the

         25  U.S. Golf Association in 1926.  The clubhouse and
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          2  golf course have since been demolished.

          3                 The house was built for Charles and

          4  Florence Fitzgerald and then sold in 1926 to Ethel

          5  and Morris Ginsberg. Ginsberg made his fortune as

          6  part of a family- owned business supplying sash door

          7  and wooden trim for builders.  The firm was

          8  considered to be one of the leaders in this field in

          9  the Long Island Region.  The Ginsberg family lived

         10  in the house for over 70 years.

         11                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         12  the designation.  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Do any of my

         14  colleagues have any questions?  Is there anyone

         15  here, thank you very much.  Is there anyone here

         16  that filled out, I do not see anything in these

         17  papers to testify against or for this.  Thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 On the second item that we talked

         20  about, or the first item we talked about from the

         21  School Construction Authority, we have Mr. Greg

         22  Shaw, from the New York City School Construction

         23  Authority, and Vahak Khajekian.  I hope I got that

         24  right, also from the New York City School

         25  Construction Authority. Thank you.
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          2                 MR. SHAW:  Thank you.  Good

          3  afternoon, Chairman Felder, and Council members.

          4  Thanks for having us today to present this very

          5  important project.  My name is Gregory Shaw, I am

          6  the principle attorney for real estate for the

          7  School Construction Authority.  And to my right is

          8  Vahak Khajekian, who is the Manager of Operations

          9  for real estate for the Department of Education.

         10                 As you are aware, on November 10,

         11  2005, we submitted this proposed project to the

         12  Council and to the Mayor. The New York City School

         13  Construction Authority has undertaken the site

         14  selection process for the following proposed

         15  project, a 630- seat intermediate and high school

         16  facility to be located in the Borough of the Bronx.

         17  This facility will be located on, or proposed for

         18  location on tax block 2723, Lot 33, along the East

         19  side of Simpson Street between Barreto and 163rd

         20  Street in the Borough of the Bronx.  It will

         21  encompass DOE Region Number 2, and Bronx Community

         22  Board- 2.  The project site is approximately 17,200

         23  square foot rectangular property located along

         24  Simpson Street.  The site is owned by the Casita

         25  Maria Inc., a not- for profit organization that
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          2  operates programs within the existing on- site,

          3  three- story structure.

          4                 The Bronx Studio School of Writers

          5  and Artists, which was recently created by the

          6  Department of Education occupies a portion of the

          7  building under a license agreement with Casita

          8  Maria.  In fact, we are leasing space for

          9  approximately 75 students.  Under the proposed

         10  project the SCA would acquire the property, demolish

         11  the existing on- site structure, and construct a new

         12  approximately 630- seat ISHS facility for the Bronx

         13  Studio School and Casita Maria.

         14                 The notice of following of the site

         15  plan was published in the New York Post and the City

         16  Record on May 10, 2005.  Bronx Community Board- 2

         17  was notified on that same date, and was asked to

         18  hold a public hearing on the proposed site plan.

         19  Although Bronx Community Board- 2 conducted a public

         20  hearing on the site plan on May 25th, it did not

         21  submit written comments regarding the site plan.

         22  Although, I will note that at that public hearing

         23  there were supportive comments that were made.

         24  The City Planning Commission was also notified on

         25  May 10, 2005, and they subsequently recommended in
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          2  favor of the proposed site.             The

          3  Authority has considered all comments received on

          4  the proposed project and affirms the site plan

          5  pursuant to Section 1731 of the Public Authorities

          6  Law.  In accordance with Section 1732 of the Public

          7  Authorities Law, the Authority submitted the site

          8  plan to the Mayor and Council, and to you Council

          9  members for consideration.  Enclosed are copies of

         10  the proposed site plan, environmental assessment,

         11  negative declaration that has been prepared for the

         12  project.

         13                 The Authority looks forward to your

         14  favorable consideration of this site plan.  Thank

         15  you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.  Do

         17  any of my colleagues have any questions?  All right,

         18  I just want to mention that Council Member Foster,

         19  in whose district this is, is in favor of this

         20  motion for your edification.  Seeing no questions, I

         21  would like to take a vote on the two,- - thank you

         22  very much- -

         23                 MR. SHAW:  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: - - on the two

         25  items that we just discussed.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Chairman Felder.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes, on both.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

          5  Perkins.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

          7  Comrie.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Yes on both.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

         10  Koppell.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Aye on both.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.  When

         13  he comes in we will take a vote.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

         15  Perkins.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Aye on both.

         17

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank  you.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK:  The vote stands as

         20  four in the affirmative, none in the negative, and

         21  no abstentions.  Matters are referred to the full

         22  Land Use Committee.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.  Now

         24  we will deal with the third item, Brooklyn Community

         25  Board- 1, 20065076HKK, and 060166HKK, designation
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          2  list 368, LP- 2163, by the Landmarks Preservation

          3  Commission pursuant to Section 3020 of the New York

          4  City Charter of the Austin, Nichols and Company

          5  Warehouse, located at 184- 198 Kent Avenue, Block

          6  2348, Lot 1.  On behalf of the Administration we are

          7  honored to have with us, Diane Jackier. But, we are

          8  also honored to have with us today the Chair of the

          9  Commission Robert Tierney.  Although he is in the

         10  middle of his other meetings across the street, he

         11  has come across to spend some time with us to give

         12  us some testimony.  Unfortunately, we cannot have

         13  his company for the entirety of the hearing because

         14  he has to go back to his meeting.  But he will be

         15  leaving the people who really run the Commission

         16  with us to take over when he leaves.  I was

         17  complimenting you, what is there to defend.  We need

         18  another chair for Diane.  Can somebody get her a

         19  chair?

         20                 MR. TIERNEY:  Thank you, Mr.

         21  Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Just identify

         23  yourself for the record.

         24                 MR. TIERNEY:  I will.  Bob Tierney, I

         25  am the Chairman of the Landmarks Preservation
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          2  Commission, and I have Mary Beth Betts on my right,

          3  who is Director of Research for the Landmarks

          4  Preservation Commission, and Diane Jackier who is

          5  well known here.  I will begin with the testimony.

          6  And I thank the Chairman for understanding that

          7  Tuesdays are public hearing days at the Landmarks

          8  Commission.  We are in the middle of one.  We were

          9  able to do our scheduling to be able to do this.

         10  And I am very appreciative of that consideration and

         11  understanding.  But the importance of this

         12  designation is such that I wanted to personally be

         13  here to attest to it.

         14                 Good morning, again, Chairman Felder

         15  and honorable Council members.  Thank you for giving

         16  me the opportunity to testify before your

         17  Subcommittee to urge your support for the

         18  Commission's designation of the Austin, Nichols

         19  Warehouse Building in Brooklyn.  This building is

         20  extremely important to New York City and to

         21  Brooklyn.  It was designed by Master Architect Cass

         22  Gilbert, who first gained national prominence at the

         23  end of the 19th Century.  And when he won the

         24  Commissions for the Minnesota State Capital, but

         25  more importantly from our point of view today, U.S.

                                                            15

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  Custom House, a distinguished New York City

          3  Landmark.  Robert A.M. Stern, critic, architect,

          4  wrote, "Each building in Gilbert's extraordinary

          5  succession of projects was seen as a contribution to

          6  the collective public good."  And this is clearly

          7  evident in Gilbert's other New York City designs,

          8  including right around us here, and you are all

          9  familiar with them, I just tick them off very

         10  quickly the Woolworth Building, 90 West Street, the

         11  Broadway Chambers Building over on the Northwest

         12  corner of Broadway and Chambers Street, the U.S.

         13  Court House up in Foley Square, the New York County

         14  Lawyers Building, on Vecees Street, the New York

         15  County Lawyers Association.  That is amazing.  That

         16  is four, five, six significant Cass Gilbert

         17  buildings, all New York City landmarks located

         18  within a block or two of where we are sitting.

         19                 So, along with McKim, Mead and White,

         20  Cass Gilbert produced some of the most significant

         21  state capitals, museums, and skyscrapers in America.

         22    For the Austin, Nichols Commission in 1913, which

         23  is obviously why we are here, Gilbert designed an

         24  austere and monumental Egyptian Revival style

         25  building, relying on scale and proportion, rather
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          2  than three dimensional ornament, to create one of

          3  the most visually prominent buildings on the

          4  Brooklyn Waterfront.

          5                 Above the ground floor, most of the

          6  windows are grouped in threes, creating a subtly and

          7  insistent rhythm across the concrete facades.

          8  Gilbert's attention to detail and involvement in

          9  this Commission included the construction of a full-

         10  scale mark- up of the buildings prominent cornice to

         11  guarantee that the proportions of this important

         12  element were exactly right.  That is rarely done,

         13  not often done, a full- scale mark- up of something,

         14  particularly on a building of this size.

         15                 The Austin, Nichols Warehouse is also

         16  one of the first reinforced concrete buildings in

         17  New York City designed by a major architect.  While

         18  this construction method is common place today, when

         19  it was built in 1914, this was a highly innovative

         20  system that feature new technology, faster

         21  production. Gilbert was one of the first architects

         22  to recognize the aesthetic qualities of concrete.

         23  And his straightforward treatment of the material

         24  was entirely new at the time.  Project Engineer

         25  Gunvald Aus (phonetic) and the Turner Construction

                                                            17

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  Company, still going strong, completed this fine

          3  example of early 20th Century engineering in just

          4  14- months.

          5                 Measuring 179 by 440 feet the

          6  warehouse was described in the Brooklyn Daily Eagle

          7  as, "model of modern construction and efficiency,"

          8  integrating railroad tracks, freight elevators,

          9  conveyor belts, pneumatic tubes to move the

         10  companies products into and around the building as

         11  fast as possible.  It was truly an engine of

         12  commerce for its time.  And it stands today, we

         13  think, as a symbol of that important part of New

         14  York's industrial history, sitting where it does in

         15  this incredibly prominent spot, on the river.

         16                 Finally, finally, from a historical

         17  perspective, this building served as the

         18  headquarters for Austin, Nichols and Company, which

         19  was the world's largest wholesale grocery business

         20  in the early 20th Century.  Established in 1879 by

         21  Nichols and five other associates, it grew to occupy

         22  first nine buildings in Manhattan, and then it moved

         23  over to Kent Avenue in Williamsburg. Under the

         24  Sunbeam Foods label all types of products were

         25  prepared, processed, and packaged in the building,
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          2  from dried food and coffee, to cheese, olives,

          3  peanut butter.  And in 1934, Austin, Nichols entered

          4  the liquor business, and the building remained as

          5  its headquarters until the late 1950s.

          6                 And if I may interject here.  I was

          7  in a conversation over the last day or two with a

          8  former chairman of this Subcommittee, Councilman

          9  Felder.  And during that conversation we were

         10  discussing, and it is not the former chairman who is

         11  in this room.  So I think maybe you will, but I am

         12  not going to disclose his identity.  And he said, do

         13  you know what the most important product today of

         14  Austin, Nichols is?  And I said, well I think it is

         15  Burbon, I think it is booze, burbon, scotch,

         16  whatever, whiskey.  And he said yes, but what kind?

         17  And I said I do not know, why do you ask?  And he

         18  said it is a very important week for that product

         19  because it is Wild Turkey.  So, I took as a

         20  favorable omen for the day, but we will see how that

         21  turkey.  I am at risk here with the Chairman, I know

         22  to sort of, any reparte of wit with the Chairman, I

         23  am coming out on the wrong end, but I thought I

         24  would throw that out from one of your predecessors.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  No, we just want
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          2  to know whether you brought some.  That is all.

          3                 MR. TIERNEY:  Good one.  It is not

          4  noon yet.  It is noon, okay.  When the Landmarks

          5  Commission held a public hearing on this building on

          6  July 26, 2005, the owners and their representatives

          7  testified against designation, as did Council Member

          8  Yassky, who is here of course, and State Senator

          9  Marty Connor.  Twenty- seven people representing

         10  groups from all over the City spoke in favor.  There

         11  are several points I would like to briefly address

         12  that were raised at the hearing, and may well be

         13  reiterated today by opponents of the designation.

         14                 First, there was an argument that the

         15  building pails in comparison to other Gilbert

         16  projects.  And that the building is not really a

         17  Gilbert design because of the constraints imposed by

         18  developer Horace Havermeyer.  We believe that is

         19  simply not true.  And I am advised by my Director of

         20  Research here with me, as well as other scholarly

         21  work that has been done about this building.  The

         22  fact that this building's design is different from

         23  some of Gilbert's earlier works does not make it any

         24  less interesting or significant architecturally.

         25  And to the contrary, it shows Gilbert's diversity
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          2  and skills as an architect.

          3                 In addition, while the owner had an

          4  opinion about how the building should look, and even

          5  valued engineered the design in some respects as we

          6  say today, its essential architecture remains a Cass

          7  Gilbert design and he remained fully engaged in the

          8  building's construction and completion.  Every

          9  development project in New York has financial

         10  constraints and even disagreements between a client

         11  and his architect, almost all of them do.

         12                 Furthermore, this was not the first

         13  time that Gilbert's design had been altered because

         14  of some client request. Included in the back of this

         15  testimony are renderings and completed designs of a

         16  couple of the buildings that I mentioned earlier, 90

         17  West Street and Broadway Chambers.  And you can see

         18  on 90 West Street a prominent clock tower was

         19  eliminated from its final construction.  And on

         20  Broadway Chambers, Gilbert envisioned a building

         21  more than twice the size than what was actually

         22  built. The completed building is also clad in brick,

         23  not limestone as Gilbert had originally designed.

         24                 A third page shows the Austin,

         25  Nichols building itself, as Gilbert originally
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          2  designed it and then the completed building in 1914-

          3  15.  Compared to the significant changes at 90 West

          4  and Broadway Chambers, Havermeyer's relatively minor

          5  alterations did not effect the overall design of

          6  Gilbert's building in any significant way.

          7                 Another argument, which could be

          8  heard, is that that this Commission never indicated

          9  its interest in the building until May 2004.  Put

         10  that in the proper context, that the City has, as

         11  you all well know, a million buildings,

         12  approximately two percent, 2.3 percent or so of

         13  which are actually designated landmarks.  It is no

         14  surprise that the Agency has not already

         15  comprehensively identified and designated all worthy

         16  buildings. It is an ongoing process, as you well

         17  know.

         18                 We are constantly uncovering eligible

         19  buildings through agency surveys, requests for

         20  evaluation from the public, and sometimes through

         21  the Environmental Review Process.  And in this case,

         22  this building was brought to our attention through

         23  an Environmental Review, arising from the owners

         24  request for a variance from the Board of Standards

         25  and Appeals.  And the Commission promptly identified
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          2  it as a significant, historic resource worthy of

          3  designation.

          4                 This is the purpose of the City's

          5  Environmental Quality Review Statute, to require

          6  agencies to consider what environmental or historic

          7  resources could be effected by government actions.

          8  Moreover, the agency would earlier had identified

          9  the building as a significant historic resource if

         10  the owners consultants had forwarded two previous

         11  Environmental Reviews to us for review.

         12                 Finally, I would like to address

         13  comments that the designation of the Austin, Nichols

         14  Warehouse interferes with the City Administration's

         15  development strategy for the City's Industrial

         16  Waterfront, and that the Commission should have a

         17  more comprehensive plan for the Waterfront's

         18  historic resources before moving ahead with any

         19  designations.

         20                 First, the Landmarks Commission, as

         21  you all know, does not regulate use of this building

         22  and cannot, even if we wish to.  It is residential,

         23  and nothing in this designation would change that.

         24  And like many industrial warehouse buildings in

         25  SoHo, NoHo, and Tribeca, it is being and will be
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          2  creatively and adaptively reused in an

          3  architecturally appropriate way.  We are concerned

          4  only with the important architectural features on

          5  its exterior, not how it would be used going

          6  forward.  In fact, if the more adaptively and

          7  creatively reuse consistent with our statutory

          8  obligations the better.  A healthy building is one

          9  that is actively used and occupied, maintained, and

         10  so on.

         11                 Furthermore, we do not believe that

         12  the designation of the warehouse conflicts with the

         13  City plans for the Waterfront.  And for instance the

         14  proving that, I think, is that the City Planning

         15  Commission unanimously approved this designation at

         16  its November 2005 hearing.   And we had had

         17  extensive discussion with them prior to that about

         18  that process. As for waiting for a survey, until the

         19  survey is complete, we felt that Austin, Nichols was

         20  a building whose integrity was threatened, and we

         21  felt compelled to act.

         22                 For buildings that qualify as

         23  individual landmarks, which have an overwhelming

         24  architectural and historic significance to the City,

         25  which we strongly believe this building does, the
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          2  Commission cannot delay designation until an overall

          3  survey of an area is completed.

          4                 In conclusion, Brooklyn's Waterfront

          5  is playing a major role in the revitalization of New

          6  York City.  We have cruise ships, obviously you are

          7  all aware of it, Lux Cruise are docking in the

          8  waterfront, new buildings, adaptive reuse, housing,

          9  new and existing buildings are bringing new vitality

         10  to the area.  As we have learned before, newly

         11  emerging areas like this are only improved by

         12  sensitive, adaptive reuse of prominent historic

         13  resources, such as the Austin, Nichols Building.

         14  And I urge you to affirm its designation.  Thank you

         15  very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very,

         17  Chair Tierney.  We are going to take questions from

         18  my colleagues, but I would first like Council Member

         19  Yassky, in whose district this property lies, to ask

         20  any questions or make any comments if he wishes to.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Well, thank

         22  you, Chair Felder.  And I do have a couple of

         23  questions, but I just would like to preface it

         24  really with a statement to you Chair Tierney and to

         25  my colleagues.  I do not serve on this Committee,
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          2  but my Council member colleagues who do serve on

          3  this Committee.  And that is that I do oppose this

          4  designation.  And I am asking, I would ask you, my

          5  colleagues, to vote against a designation or to

          6  reject this application before you.  And I will

          7  explain why.

          8                 I have just enormous respect for the

          9  Commission, and in particular for the Chair.  And I

         10  have had the opportunity to work with Chair Tierney

         11  on several matters, and really has been one of the

         12  real pleasures of my four years here, to tell you

         13  truth.  And so I take their recognition, rather

         14  their recommendation here and their report and

         15  testimony very, very seriously.  And you know, it

         16  has occurred to me, well maybe our role is to defer

         17  to the expertise of the Landmarks Commission. But I

         18  do not believe that is our role.  I believe that the

         19  Charter says that the Council should exercise its

         20  own independent judgement.  And that where as the

         21  Commission has a special purpose focus on

         22  preservation of historic resources, it falls to us

         23  in the Council to balance that mission against the

         24  other goals out there to be achieved.  And here I do

         25  believe, that the balance of the arguments weighs
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          2  definitively against designation.

          3                 To me, the context here is critical.

          4  And the context here is that we just approved,

          5  working very closely with the Administration of

          6  course, a major rezoning of the entire North

          7  Brooklyn Waterfront that is designed to convert

          8  these formerly industrial buildings to residential

          9  use.  It is, by no means the first, not the first of

         10  these, nor will it be the last. Indeed, I think one

         11  of the major things going on in land use in this

         12  City, is the adaptive reuse, as you say, or it maybe

         13  just the replacement of the industrial buildings of

         14  the past with the buildings that we need to serve us

         15  and serve our constituents in the future.

         16                 And I think that, would this landmark

         17  stop that? Of course, it would not stop that.  But

         18  nor is it, I think, fair and accurate to say it

         19  doesn't burden it.  You know, we all recognize that

         20  designation does carry some burdens to development.

         21  And here where we have the policy in favor of

         22  development and conversion of this waterfront, I

         23  think that that has got to be taken into

         24  consideration.  And particularly, I think this whole

         25  question of preservation of industrial buildings, is
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          2  one where we really need a comprehensive approach,

          3  because we have done this in Brooklyn, we are going

          4  to be doing it in Queens, and in the Bronx, if you

          5  know, the trends so continue.  And I am very, very

          6  concerned about the precedent that designating this

          7  building would set for how we are going to be

          8  redeveloping that waterfront.

          9                 So, certainly, in the absence of a

         10  kind of comprehensive policy, I am very reluctant to

         11  support designation here.  Still, having said that,

         12  I would support designation if I were persuaded that

         13  preservation of this building was essential. And

         14  here, I just have to say, that I am not so

         15  persuaded.  I do not have the, I am not an

         16  architect, not my profession.  But I have driven by

         17  that building, by the building that is proposed to

         18  be designated, 100 times before and walked around it

         19  before I had heard that it was proposed to be

         20  designated a landmark, and it never occurred to me

         21  once.  Just from the aesthetic perspective, which I

         22  do think is important here.  This is not a building

         23  of distinction.  Now, I understand that it is a

         24  building that was designed by a, obviously, not just

         25  a famous and prominent, but an architect of,  you
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          2  know, extraordinary talent here.  I just do not

          3  think that is enough of a basis on which to

          4  designate this building.

          5                 The Woolworth Building, of course,

          6  you know, the Supreme Court, obviously, I mean there

          7  is one that I did not know he did that was in your

          8  statement here.  Not just the Customs House, the

          9  County Lawyers Building, of course, but this

         10  building is not a building of distinction.  And I

         11  just ask the Committee to look at it on the merits

         12  of that.

         13                 I support, much of my district, a

         14  very good part of my district is historic areas.

         15  And I support the landmarks process and the

         16  landmarks law.  I have support landmarking of

         17  industrial buildings.  We did the Thompson Water

         18  Meter Building, the Commission did.  And I supported

         19  that enthusiastically, a very distinguished

         20  building.  I supported the designation of commercial

         21  buildings in Downtown Brooklyn that the Commission

         22  choose to designate.  I think those were well- worth

         23  while. Indeed, I have asked, Commissioner I know

         24  that they are working on this, to consider a broader

         25  historical area in Dumbo, whether that is specific
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          2  buildings or historic district.

          3                 So, I think that there is room to

          4  preserve the industrial heritage.  I just think this

          5  building is not it. Indeed, and even on this

          6  waterfront, I would, in negotiations with the

          7  Administration over the rezoning, I proposed

          8  designating the Greenpoint Terminal Market Building,

          9  which is a series of gorgeous industrial buildings

         10  that I think are, you know, quite distinctive.  And

         11  a landmark, in the common use for the term, for

         12  people in that neighborhood, I proposed designating.

         13    And the Administration did not want to pursue that

         14  idea.  Instead what they pursued here is a building,

         15  that I just think is, it is not without distinction,

         16  but it does not have the level of distinction that

         17  would merit outweighing these other factors.

         18                 So, that, my colleagues, is my

         19  position.  And I would ask you to oppose this

         20  designation.

         21                 The couple of questions that I have

         22  for the Commission and Chair Tierney, I know have

         23  asked you about this before.  Another Cass Gilbert

         24  Building on the Brooklyn Waterfront, that to me is a

         25  very distinguished building, but is not landmarked,
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          2  is the building in Brooklyn Army Terminal.

          3                 MR. TIERNEY:  Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Is that, are

          5  you proposing to landmark that as well?  And- -

          6                 MR. TIERNEY:  Not today, but we are

          7  actively looking at that building.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Well, I mean

          9  if this is landmark worthy, is there any argument

         10  that that is not landmark worthy?

         11                 MR. TIERNEY:  I think it will have to

         12  be, an analysis has to be undertaken.  But I think

         13  most people would agree that it is of significance.

         14  But it has not been and nor is it currently

         15  threatened, I am advised, obviously.  It is of

         16  significance.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Well wait, I

         18  am sorry, just on the currently threatened, I mean

         19  that was, I think there is a whole City endorsed

         20  development strategy for that building. There is

         21  even money in the City budget to develop it.  I mean

         22  it is just as every bit as threatened as this one.

         23                 MR. TIERNEY:  We do not believe that

         24  it is threatened, if at all, in the same way.  And I

         25  am actively talking to people in the Administration
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          2  and others about that building.  As well as, by the

          3  way, the Greenpoint Market you alluded to.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Well, I would

          5  leave it at that, I guess to say, that you know, if

          6  we are coming back and you are saying that there are

          7  a series of buildings, and this is the overall

          8  policy, I just would let you know that I am

          9  certainly open to thinking and reconsidering.  But,

         10  those buildings to me, are so eminently more worthy

         11  that before I would want reconsider, I would want to

         12  know whether you are really planning to do that.   Thank

         13  you, Chair Felder.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Mr.

         17  Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Could I ask

         20  colleague, Mr. Yassky, a question?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  It is fine

         22  with me.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  In

         25  considering your position on this building, and I
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          2  understand your commitment to housing which I share.

          3    And I was wondering whether there was any

          4  discussion that you have had in using this building

          5  for housing, because many buildings that were

          6  formerly warehouses or lofts or whatever, have been

          7  converted to residential use.  Is that something

          8  that you have considered and it has been involved in

          9  your, because I respect your view enormously, has

         10  that been considered by you in recommending against

         11  this based on building housing?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Yes, indeed,

         13  thank you Council Member Koppell.  And I really

         14  left, I glossed over that in my statement.  But that

         15  is really what I am talking about here is, I think

         16  the policy of this City, the policy that I believe

         17  we should be pursuing, and that we as a body chose

         18  to pursue, is conversion of this Waterfront to

         19  housing.  This building is the perfect example, it

         20  is my understanding, that the owner of the building

         21  intends to convert it to housing.  And that is my

         22  direct, you know, very explicitly, that is my

         23  concern that landmarking interferes with that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Well, you

         25  have sort of gotten close to my question, but you
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          2  have not answered it. Landmarking does not prevent

          3  reuse.  Can this building be converted without

          4  disturbing let's say, you know, I do not want to get

          5  into a lengthy discussion with the Landmark

          6  Commission here in this context.  But, could this

          7  building be converted to housing without destroying

          8  the facade and maintaining, you know, its essential

          9  features, but changing the inside so it is no longer

         10  an industrial building, but now has apartments in

         11  it?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Can I interrupt

         13  just for a minute?  I think that the issues that you

         14  are raising, Councilman Koppell, are important ones.

         15    I want to try to focus on what we are here for

         16  today.  And that is specifically, whether the

         17  property should be designated as a landmark or not.

         18  And whether something, you know, something else can

         19  or cannot be done with it afterwards, I think the

         20  issue is, I would like to think that the issue is

         21  whether the property, as it exists, is worthy of

         22  landmarking.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  But, Mr.

         24  Chairman, if I may.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Please.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  My vote, my

          3  vote, I am sympathetic to Councilman Yassky's

          4  objective here.  If I were told that landmarking

          5  will not prevent conversion, and I am going to use a

          6  completely arbitrary number, to 300 apartments, that

          7  might change my view on landmarking.  On the other

          8  hand, if I am told that the building really cannot

          9  be made into housing, and what is intended to do is

         10  to tear the building down and build 300 units of

         11  housing, then I might, well, vote against

         12  landmarking it.

         13                 So I think the issue is directly

         14  relevant to my consideration.  And I frankly, would

         15  like to know Mr. Yassky's view, because I am sure he

         16  has thought about this.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  No, yes

         18  absolutely.  And Chair with your indulgence, just

         19  because I have asked the Committee.  You know, as I

         20  understand it, it could certainly be reused as

         21  housing.  You know, I have got to believe, and I do

         22  not want to speak for, you know, this question is

         23  most properly put, I suppose to the developer or the

         24  owner of the property, or to other experts on

         25  development, but so far as I have an opinion, I have
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          2  thought about it.  I have got to believe that it

          3  could be converted, but not nearly so easily.  And

          4  to me that is the issue here, is that there is a

          5  burden placed on the conversion to housing.

          6                 Do I expect that it could be done

          7  anyway?  I expect that it could be done anyway.  But

          8  I do not think that the burden is worth it.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chairman.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.  I

         12  have some questions for the Chair.  I understand

         13  that Cass Gilbert specifically, disavowed

         14  responsibility for the finish design of this

         15  building, as a result of a dispute over design of

         16  the exterior facade.  Why does the designation

         17  report not reflect this?

         18                 MR. TIERNEY:  I am going to ask Mary

         19  Beth Betts, who is a Cass Gilbert expert, who can

         20  answer that specific question.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Sure.

         22                 MR. TIERNEY:  I addressed it in

         23  general, of course, in terms of the engineering and

         24  so on and so forth.  But that specific question if

         25  you would?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  No problem.

          3                 MR. TIERNEY:  Mary Beth.

          4                 MS. BETTS:  I have actually, before I

          5  came to Landmarks Preservation Commission, I was

          6  curator of the New York Historical Society for nine

          7  years.  And I read through all of the Cass Gilbert

          8  correspondence for this building and for many other

          9  buildings.  And in each, in almost every project by

         10  Cass Gilbert, you will at certain points in the

         11  project, find very similar disavows.  A certain

         12  design decision that he had lost in an argument with

         13  an owner.  Gilbert worked closely with owners, I

         14  think even more so than a lot of other architects

         15  that I have studied.  And he firmly believed in an

         16  onerous contribution.  And he sometimes lost things.

         17

         18                 And it is reflected, that

         19  disagreement, which is what I would characterize it

         20  as, is reflected in the designation report when we

         21  refer to a memo where he has lost his argument about

         22  the depth of reveals, of course, Havermeyer.  So it

         23  is in there, it is just how it has been

         24  characterized.

         25                 My review of Cass Gilbert's career as
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          2  a whole, you know when you look at the Broadway

          3  Chambers Building, he really wanted it to be a

          4  limestone and beige brick building, not a red brick

          5  and granite building.  When you look at 90 West

          6  Street, he really wanted that clock tower on top of

          7  it.  And he lost both of those battles.  And you

          8  will find some very disappointed, close to disavow

          9  types of correspondence in there.  And he was still

         10  involved with the building, and they are still

         11  considered his buildings.

         12                 And if you have not noted in the

         13  designation report, when Gilbert drew as many

         14  architects like to do, a kind of pantheon of their

         15  greatest works, some years later like in the 1920s,

         16  Austin, Nichols was included in that pantheon.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I am not going

         18  to debate that.  You did not answer my question.

         19  But it is okay because it is a nice day outside.  I

         20  understand that a building permit exists.  I did not

         21  ask you to explain to me, why, even though it is not

         22  specifically in the report, it is okay.  I

         23  understand that a building permit exists for work on

         24  the facade that would substantially alter the

         25  configuration of the windows.  What significance
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          2  does this have relative to proposed designation?

          3                 I am asking whoever is willing to

          4  answer.

          5                 MS. BETTS:  The current facade.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I am sorry.

          7                 MS. BETTS:  The current building

          8  permit?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes.

         10                 MR. TIERNEY:  The facade would be, if

         11  I correctly understand the building permit you are

         12  alluding, it will do incalculable damage to the

         13  facade by, basically, destroying the windows among

         14  other things.  And would render some of the

         15  important significant architectural features, gone,

         16  it would destroy them.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  And did the

         18  Landmarks Commission receive mail in opposition to

         19  the proposed designation?

         20                 MR. TIERNEY:  Mail in opposition?  I

         21  know we received tons of mail on both sides.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Right, because

         23  if,- -

         24                 MR. TIERNEY:  For it, yes Sir.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  No I am sorry,
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          2  continue.

          3                 MR. TIERNEY:  And I believe we did

          4  receive mail. We certainly did.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  You do not

          6  mention that in your designation report.

          7                 MS. BETTS:  No, we do.  Actually, I

          8  will correct that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Sure.

         10                 MS. BETTS:  There has been reference

         11  to, and made at public hearings, by the owner and

         12  the representatives that there was a substantial

         13  number of postcards against.  We have never seen

         14  those.  We do mention in the report that there is an

         15  Adolfus Towns letter in opposition.  But in terms of

         16  numerous postcards or a petition, it has been made

         17  reference to but it has never been presented at our

         18  office.

         19                 MR. TIERNEY:  And I certainly receive

         20  mail from many of the people in this room,

         21  voluminous mail, from- -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I do not

         23  understand something.

         24                 MR. TIERNEY: - - some being briefs,

         25  and some being--
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Are you saying

          3  to me that the only piece of mail that you got in

          4  opposition to this was from Adolfus Towns,

          5  Congressman Towns?

          6                 MS. BETTS:  Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Well we will get

          8  to that.

          9                 MR. TIERNEY:  No, as well as, I would

         10  add to that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Because I would

         12  really find that hard to believe.  Even if I am

         13  living in dream world, even if there were three

         14  pieces of mail in contrast to 400 pieces of mail, I

         15  think that that should be reflected.  That is all.

         16  That is all.

         17                 MR. TIERNEY:  Sure.  Many of the

         18  people in this room you are going to be hearing from

         19  later, and the Councilman, have communicated with me

         20  by mail about this, in opposition to this

         21  designation.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So is that in

         23  your designation report?

         24                 MS. BETTS:  Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  That you
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          2  received mail.

          3                 MS. BETTS:  Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  What does it

          5  say?

          6                 MS. BETTS:  Sorry, the print is a

          7  little small for these.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes, that is why

          9  I asked you to read it.

         10                 MS. BETTS:  Okay.  The Commission has

         11  received numerous letters, now it has been our

         12  policy that if, Council Member Yassky, testifies in

         13  opposition, that trumps any the letter that he sent

         14  us.  So, his opposition is characterized by his

         15  testimony, as is the opposition of the owners and

         16  their representatives.  The Commission has received

         17  numerous letters on this issue, including more than

         18  500 postcards from mostly Williamsburg residents,

         19  and letters from architectural historians, as well

         20  as a letter in opposition from Congressman Adolfus

         21  Towns.  Brooklyn Community Board- 1 took no action

         22  on the proposed designation.

         23                 MR. TIERNEY:  So what you are asking,

         24  I think, Mr. Chairman, we could have gone the next

         25  step, and I will in the future, and  said not only
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          2  did they testify against it, but we actually

          3  received mail from them to that effect.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Right.  All I am

          5  saying is that I think that- -

          6                 MR. TIERNEY:  We would be delighted

          7  to do that, sure.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: - - the reports

          9  should be as perfect as they can.

         10                 MR. TIERNEY:  Absolutely.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  And if you are

         12  going to spend time on a report, what I would say

         13  portraying, if no one knows otherwise, and I read

         14  what you just wrote, it would seem to me that there

         15  is almost no one who is in opposition to this and

         16  the whole world is in favor of it.  Now, the whole

         17  world that is here may be in favor of it.  But there

         18  are some people that are in opposition.  It should

         19  just be reflected.

         20                 MR. TIERNEY:  Of course, of course,

         21  absolutely.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  It is no big

         23  deal.  This is a big deal because I do not know what

         24  this means.  It says in the testimony for the

         25  Austin, Nichols Commission in 1930, Gilbert designed
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          2  an austere and monumental Egyptian Revival Style

          3  building.  Can you explain what the elements of an

          4  Egyptian Revival Style building are?

          5                 MS. BETTS:  Yes, I can.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

          7                 MS. BETTS:  The coved cornices, which

          8  you will find in numerous Egyptian temples.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  What are they,

         10  again?

         11                 MS. BETTS:  The coved cornice, the

         12  way that cornice curves that is a very typical

         13  feature of an Egyptian temple.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay.

         15                 MS. BETTS:  The way that the walls

         16  Batten in.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  The way the

         18  walls?

         19                 MS. BETTS:  Lean in.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Lean in.

         21                 MS. BETTS:  Yes, if you go an look at

         22  the Temple of Dendor, you will see something like

         23  that.  Now, Egyptian temples usually have a lot of

         24  very delicate carving on them that you see close up.

         25    But when you read them from a distance they are
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          2  massive monolithic, no windows, so the overall

          3  massing of the building also reflects that as well.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Are you saying

          5  that close up there are things that?

          6                 MS. BETTS:  No, I am saying that on

          7  Egyptian temples there are.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I see.

          9                 MS. BETTS:  Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So, then how is

         11  this like?

         12                 MS. BETTS:  The massing and the way

         13  that it reads as a monolithic building, is also

         14  inspired.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I see, from a

         16  distance.

         17                 MR. TIERNEY:  As well as those two

         18  features that she talked about.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Look I do not

         20  frequent Egyptian temples.  But I would like to

         21  know, I really want to know what it means.

         22                 MR. TIERNEY:  Sure, right.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  That is all.  I

         24  want to know that means.  Do any of my colleagues

         25  have any questions?  Seeing none I thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Mr. Chair, I

          4  am sorry, I apologize.  With your indulgence, just

          5  because you peaked my curiosity about this.  Did

          6  Gilbert, himself, say that this was an Egyptian

          7  inspired, another words, was this self- consciously

          8  Egyptian inspired, or are you kind of reading that

          9  back into it?

         10                 MS. BETTS:  It was commented upon by

         11  later critics talking about the building. I do not

         12  recall seeing Gilbert say things specifically about

         13  that.  But he studied and knit together precedence

         14  from a wide variety.  You know, he went and looked

         15  at numerous buildings throughout the world.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Somebody is

         17  more to his credit if he reinvented the Egyptian

         18  wheel as it were.  I am just curious if that was, by

         19  calling it Egyptian Revival, so that was, again, a

         20  later reading back or if that was a self- conscious

         21  thing by Gilbert.

         22                 MS. BETTS:  It was a later reading

         23  back, but I think Gilbert had a lot of sources in

         24  his mind that he always knit together for those

         25  buildings.  And he would not always comment on them.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  And this is

          3  just my ignorance, but are those the curved cornice?

          4                 MS. BETTS:  Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  And the

          6  sloping up walls. Are those unusual features in New

          7  York Buildings or are those commonplace?

          8                 MS. BETTS:  Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Those are

         10  unusual.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Just one other

         12  thing, please. You know, just to be stubborn, I

         13  still do not understand.  When I asked you about the

         14  permits that exist for work on the windows, right,

         15  so for example, if let's say today it were

         16  designated, what would happen to the permits that

         17  already exist for those windows that are so

         18  critical?

         19                 MR. TIERNEY:  I do not know what

         20  would happen to them. I would hope that if this

         21  building were designated a landmark, that the next

         22  step would not be to go in and use the permit to

         23  destroy the landmark.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  But legally, in

         25  theory, if we designate it today, then the critical
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          2  element of whatever we, you know, have been

          3  discussing as a significant part of this building

          4  could go goodbye- -

          5                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: - -  just like,

          7  you know, the developers that put in their cement,

          8  you know, when the down zoning is going to take

          9  place, before it takes place.  Is that true?

         10                 MR. TIERNEY:  I am a lawyer, but I

         11  won't give a legal opinion today, if I may.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  You do not have

         13  to give a legal opinion.  Maybe Diane can.  No, I

         14  want to know the truth.

         15                 MR. TIERNEY:  Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  In other words,

         17  if legally we know that today, even if we landmark

         18  this item, or if we decided to landmark, that

         19  tomorrow the developer can go in and legally

         20  eliminate something that is so critical to what is

         21  being described as the specialty, or being it is

         22  special in the building, that is an important issue.

         23                 MR. TIERNEY:  Council, may I?  Mark

         24  Silverman, Counsel to the Agency.

         25                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Mark Silverman.  If I
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          2  can just respond briefly.  A permit validly issued

          3  by the Department of Buildings prior to designation,

          4  that work can occur, subsequent to a designation.  I

          5  think, so the short answer to your question is yes,

          6  if they wanted to go in and do that work, nothing

          7  would legally stop them.  But I think that what we

          8  have seen in the past is, upon designation, an owner

          9  is now entered into a perpetual relationship with

         10  this agency.  And more often than not, the owner and

         11  the agency want that to be a cooperative, productive

         12  relationship.  And many times people will forego

         13  work that they have received prior permits for,

         14  because they need to work with this agency on a

         15  whole host of other reasons.  And so, I would, it is

         16  something that very possibly, and one would hope

         17  would happen in this case.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I appreciate

         19  your hope.  And I will rely on your legal opinion.

         20                 MR. TIERNEY:  May I add one thing on

         21  the residential issue before I exit, with your

         22  permission.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Sure, sure.

         24                 MR. TIERNEY:  Is that the building is

         25  now residential.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Right, we know

          3  that.

          4                 MR. TIERNEY:  Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

          6                 MR. TIERNEY:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 MR. TIERNEY:  Thank you very much.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  May I ask a

         11  question before they run away.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I am sorry,

         13  Councilman Perkins.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Because I

         15  did want to. Residential situation, because it is

         16  understood that it was industrial and not being used

         17  at all.  So, what to now, if it is landmarked, what

         18  can it still be residential?  Can it still be

         19  developed?

         20                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yes, as far as we are

         21  concerned.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  I do not

         23  want us to talk about development.  I just want to

         24  be clear though.

         25                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yes, that is correct,
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          2  it can be.  It will no way change that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Can I make a

          4  suggestion, that I would assume that we are going to

          5  have a whole bunch of panels, and I just do not want

          6  to take advantage of the Chair.  He said he had

          7  another meeting.   I think that we will be able to

          8  get some of those questions answered by some of the

          9  other panels.

         10                 MR. TIERNEY:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         12  much for being here.

         13                 MR. TIERNEY:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  The next panel

         15  will consist of David Katz, I think, representative

         16  from Congressman Ed Towns, Matt, how do you

         17  pronounce this?  Thank you, Matt Viggianno. Where

         18  are you?  Hello, representing Senator Martin Connor,

         19  and Angelica Kofin, representing Assemblyman Lentol.

         20  Okay, as, just so that we have it clear in terms of

         21  how things are going to work from here on, everybody

         22  or anybody that is going testify will have exactly

         23  two minutes or less.  If you can do it in less time,

         24  we appreciate it.  If you have anything to add to

         25  testimony that was not said already, we would like

                                                            51

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  to hear it from you.  There are a lot of people here

          3  and we will not listen to you repeat the same things

          4  over and over again.  Although, you may want to hear

          5  yourself repeat it over and over again.  So, I am

          6  asking you, as you listen to the testimony, first of

          7  all it is warm in here.  We tried opening the

          8  windows.  There is nothing much else I can do. But

          9  as you listen to the testimony, I would appreciate

         10  if people can hear what your peers or others are

         11  saying, so that if you decide that you still want to

         12  testify, you will be adding something that has not

         13  been said.  If you somehow cannot refrain from doing

         14  that, I will help you.  I will interrupt you in the

         15  middle of your testimony, and stop you, and say do

         16  you have anything new to add.  If you go past the

         17  two minutes, I will interrupt you, and say please

         18  finish your sentence.  And I am doing this, not

         19  because of anything other than the fact, that if I

         20  do not do it, we will be here all day listening to

         21  some things over and over again.  And that is not

         22  what the purpose of hearing is for.

         23                 So, you should please make sure when

         24  you open your testimony to identify yourself for the

         25  record.  And that is about it.  I am sorry.  If
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          2  anyone has, the Sergeant- at- Arms asked me just to

          3  remind, if anyone has their cell phones on, to

          4  please either turn it off, or give it to him until

          5  the end of the hearing.  Thank you.

          6                 MS. KOFIN:  Good afternoon, Chairman

          7  Felder and honorable Committee members.  My name is

          8  Angelica Kofin and I represent Assemblyman Joseph

          9  Lentol.  One eighty- four Kent Avenue is in the

         10  heart of the 50th Assembly District.  And on behalf

         11  of Assemblyman Lentol, I thank you for this

         12  opportunity to present brief comments on the

         13  proposed landmarking of 184 Kent Avenue.

         14                 I will now read Assemblyman Lentol's

         15  remarks. "Dear Councilman Felder:

         16                 I write to you to register my

         17  opposition to the landmark designation of 184 Kent

         18  Avenue.  While I understand that the architect, Cass

         19  Gilbert, is an important name, I note that his major

         20  contributions to the New York City landscape have

         21  been designated.  This property does not constitute

         22  his important or distinctive work in any way.  I am

         23  also further advised that other more highly

         24  acclaimed Cass Gilbert properties have been proposed

         25  for landmark designation.
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          2                 This property has never possessed the

          3  distinctive special features that would indicate its

          4  eligibility for landmark status.  Community Board- 1

          5  has not endorsed this request, and this building was

          6  not identified in the 197- A plan outlined by the

          7  local community.

          8                 Notwithstanding these facts, the

          9  Landmarks Preservation Commission went ahead and

         10  designated the building anyway.  I urge the City

         11  Council to reject this designation.

         12                 Sincerely signed Joseph R. Lentol,

         13  Assemblyman 50th AD."

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

         16  Next.

         17                 MR. VIGGIANNO:  My name is Matt

         18  Viggiano.  Thank you for having me.  Honorable Mr.

         19  Chair, members of the Committee, I represent Senator

         20  Martin Connor, the 25th Senate District.  We did

         21  send a letter to Councilman Felder regarding this,

         22  and I would just like to read that into the record,

         23  if I may.

         24                  "I would like to express my

         25  opposition concerning the landmark designation of
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          2  184 Kent Avenue located in my district.

          3                 As I have previously testified to the

          4  Landmarks Preservation Commission, which I am sure

          5  was mentioned before, I am aware of the historical

          6  significance of the Austin, Nichols and Company

          7  Warehouse and of its esteemed architect Cass

          8  Gilbert, whose world class designs include the

          9  United States Supreme Court Building in Washington,

         10  D.C. And the Woolworth Building in New York City,

         11  just down the block.   I mention these buildings to

         12  illustrated the types of architecture that are prime

         13  examples of the brilliance of Cass Gilbert.  I do

         14  not feel that the Austin, Nichols and Company

         15  Warehouse deserves landmark status simply because

         16  its architect is notable.

         17                 While the Landmarks Preservation

         18  Commission believes that having designated landmarks

         19  is important in improving property values in

         20  historic districts, I believe that the proposed

         21  plans for residential units in the warehouse, if it

         22  were not granted landmark status, would help improve

         23  the property values and strengthen the City's

         24  growing economy.

         25                 New York City retains many historic
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          2  districts and historic warehouses, and I do not feel

          3  that the building  gaining landmark status will

          4  compromise the City's historic character or cultural

          5  heritage.

          6                 As I mentioned before, I feel that

          7  the warehouse does not hold the architectural

          8  distinction or historical significance that some of

          9  Cass Gilbert's other works do.  I therefore urge you

         10  to reject the designation of 184 Kent Avenue for

         11  landmarking."

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

         14  Next.  Push the button, please.

         15                 MR. KATZ:  There you go.  Thank you.

         16  Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and honorable Council

         17  members.  My name is David Katz and I am here on

         18  behalf of Congressman Towns.  I am just going to

         19  read the text of the letter that he sent to your

         20  office on November 14, 2005.

         21                  "Dear Councilman Felder:

         22                 It has come to my attention that the

         23  Landmarks Commission has designated the property at

         24  184 Kent Avenue, Brooklyn, New York.  I am writing

         25  to you, as I did the Landmarks Commission, to
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          2  respectfully register my opposition to the

          3  designation.

          4                 I understand that Community Board- 1

          5  carefully studied and made recommendations for a

          6  Williamsburg Historic District, and also made

          7  specific recommendations for the landmark

          8  designations of individual buildings, which it

          9  deemed worthy, and of special or historic interest.

         10  These recommendations were publicized in the Board's

         11  197- A plan submitted to the City Council.  I note

         12  that 184 Kent Avenue is never mentioned or

         13  recognized by the Community Board as a property

         14  deserving of landmark status.

         15                 After receiving notice from the

         16  Landmarks' Commission of its plan to designate the

         17  property, I further note that the Community Board's

         18  Landmarks Subcommittee held a hearing on this

         19  matter, the result of which was that the

         20  Subcommittee, with the confirmation of the Board,

         21  elected not to support the landmark designation of

         22  184 Kent Avenue.  Despite these facts, I was

         23  disappointed to learn that the Landmarks Commission

         24  proceeded by designating the building anyway.

         25                 Accordingly, I urge the City Council
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          2  to reject this designation as a matter that is not

          3  in keeping with the stated best interests of the

          4  Williamsburg Community."

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

          7  much.  Do any of my colleagues have any questions

          8  for the representatives?  No. Thank you very much.

          9  The next panel will be Gene A. Norman, Andrew Alpern

         10  and Jordan Gruzen, I am sorry.  I forgot to mention

         11  that there is only one panel that we allow them to

         12  have extra time.  It is sort of in response to the

         13  Commission.  The Commission starts off.  We have not

         14  limited their time.  We did not limit the Chair or

         15  anybody else.  We allow panel on behalf of the owner

         16  of property, to respond without limiting their time.

         17  You may begin by identifying yourself and whenever

         18  you are ready.

         19                 MR. NORMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         20  Good afternoon Mr. Chairman and the honorable

         21  Councilpersons who are here with us today.  My name

         22  is Gene Norman, I am a retired architect.  And I

         23  have spent over 45 years in the building, design,

         24  and construction field.  I currently perform

         25  consulting services related to architecture and
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          2  historic preservation.

          3                 During the 1980s my experience

          4  included the distinct honor of serving for six years

          5  as the first, full- time Chair of the New York City

          6  Landmarks Preservation Commission. The owners of 184

          7  Kent Avenue, Brooklyn, have retained me to assist

          8  them in opposing the designation of their building

          9  as an individual New York City Landmark.

         10                 Before agreeing to accept this

         11  assignment, I visited the building and conducted

         12  preliminary research to determine, for myself, if

         13  the property exhibited the qualities of a potential

         14  landmark.  I learned that Cass Gilbert was credited

         15  as its architect.  And that it was constructed as a

         16  warehouse, food- processing and distribution center

         17  for the Austin, Nichols Company.  It was owned by

         18  the Havermeyer family and built by the Turner

         19  Construction Company.

         20                 To my surprise, the building did not

         21  appear in the many books describing New York City's

         22  architecture that are normally used for research,

         23  such as the AIA Guide to New York City, by Elliot

         24  Wolinski and Norvell White.  Elliott Wolinski has

         25  served as my Vice- Chair at the Commission.  He was
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          2  a fellow in the AIA, an author, and one of

          3  Brooklyn's biggest boosters.  His knowledge of New

          4  York's architecture was quite voluminous on

          5  buildings of great significance and on those of

          6  little interest. Yet, no mention of Austin, Nichols

          7  is in the Guide.

          8                 As a result of my investigation, I

          9  arrived at the conclusion that this building was a

         10  questionable candidate for designation.  And I only

         11  then, agreed to accept the consultancy assignment.

         12  I took on this role with some trepidation.  Since it

         13  would involve being critical of the Commission, an

         14  agency that I hold in high regard and one that has

         15  fine leadership of staff and commissioners that I

         16  respect as professionals and as personal friends.

         17  My overriding concern, however, was that they were

         18  making an error in focusing on a building that just

         19  did not meet the high quality that an individual

         20  landmark must possess.  Only the very best buildings

         21  deserve this title.

         22                 I joined a team of architectural

         23  historians, researchers, architects, and attorneys

         24  that was assembled by the owner, and worked on the

         25  detailed research and data collection that was
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          2  performed in preparation for the Commission's

          3  designation hearing.  I attended the hearing.  Our

          4  material presented at the hearing was thorough, and

          5  it reinforced my original opinion about the lack of

          6  understanding importance in this building.

          7                 For me the most compelling

          8  information, was the Cass Gilbert archive at the New

          9  York Historical Society.  The archive contains

         10  notes, minutes of job meetings, letters, and a

         11  record of decisions made during the design and

         12  construction of 184 Kent Avenue.  Reading this

         13  material was like being a fly on the wall and a

         14  witness to events that occurred almost 100 years

         15  ago.  This is an opportunity that is seldom granted

         16  to those of us interested in understanding the

         17  creation of architecture from the past.

         18                 The material revealed that Horace

         19  Havermeyer made many of the design decisions, often

         20  against Gilbert's wishes.  So much so, that Gilbert

         21  went so far as to state that the resulting design

         22  would be unsatisfactory.  Hardly, the position an

         23  architect takes regarding a design that carries his

         24  name.

         25                 This fact and many others regarding
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          2  the final decisions made by the project, were never

          3  mentioned in the Commission's designation report.

          4  The report also made claims about a connection to

          5  the European Modernist Movement, without signing

          6  written references to substantiate this suppose

          7  connection.  Instead, it used the phrase, "may have

          8  served as inspiration and development of European

          9  Modernism."

         10                 In a similar manner, the report's

         11  findings and designation section describes the

         12  building's roofline as, "an unusual coved or flared

         13  cornice, which was likely to have been modeled on

         14  ancient Egyptian sources."  Is likely sufficient

         15  reason to make this claim?  Where is proof of this

         16  Egyptian Revival connection?

         17                 Cass Gilbert is an important American

         18  architect. Several of his buildings are designated

         19  as New York City landmarks.  They contribute to our

         20  city by adding architectural beauty, historic

         21  importance, and true cultural distinction.

         22  Unfortunately, the Austin, Nichols Warehouse is not

         23  worthy to join these great structures.

         24                 The members of our team will speak to

         25  you about additional deficiencies contained in the
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          2  designation report, and advise you on other matters

          3  for you to consider.  In my opinion the Commission

          4  has erred in designating 184 Kent Avenue, while

          5  overlooking the truly great Cass Gilbert achievement

          6  just a few miles to the south, is Brooklyn Army

          7  Terminal.  The Austin, Nichols Warehouse pales in

          8  comparison to the warehouses that make up this

          9  complex of refined, functionalism, executed in

         10  exposed concrete that was erected in response to the

         11  great war and America's participation as a world

         12  power.

         13                 I respectfully urge you to reject the

         14  designation of the lesser Gilbert building at 184

         15  Kent Avenue.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

         17  Next.

         18                 MR. ALPERN:  I am Andrew Alpern, an

         19  architectural historian who has specialized in the

         20  study of New York City's buildings for 40 years.  I

         21  am also a registered architect, and I am a

         22  practicing attorney.

         23                 The Cass Gilbert office archives at

         24  the New York Historical Society, which we have heard

         25  much about from Mary Beth Betts, reveal much factual

                                                            63

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  material.  However, much of that is at odds with the

          3  assertions of the designation report for 184 Kent

          4  Avenue.  Mary Beth Betts in preparing that report

          5  has, of course, been very, very selective in what

          6  she choose to quote and the stress that she choose

          7  to give to the material.  I too, have read through

          8  that material, perhaps not as thoroughly as she did.

          9    She had eight years to do it.  However, I did not

         10  find that the result of that reading led to the

         11  conclusion that Mary Beth concluded.

         12                 The original project minutes show

         13  that the developer Horace Havermeyer's ideas and his

         14  very tight budget had a major impact on its design,

         15  and it overrode much of Cass Gilbert's influence on

         16  the building.

         17                 I point out that the most important

         18  visual element of the building's facades, something

         19  that Commissioner Tierney pointed out, the windows.

         20  Those windows, that element was ruled by

         21  Havermeyer's cost decisions, rather than Gilbert's

         22  aesthetic desires, prompting Gilbert to disavow the

         23  only aspect of the building that he had fought for.

         24  This is where this building is very, very different

         25  from the Tower at 90 West Street that he lost out
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          2  on, and the limestone facade on the Broadway

          3  Chambers Building, which he also lost out on.  In

          4  those two cases, he had very ornamented, very

          5  elaborate buildings that had multiple, multiple

          6  ornamentation decorative devices, and aesthetic

          7  elements.  He had far more, perhaps, than they

          8  needed.  He may have done that deliberately knowing

          9  that there would be some of it cut out.

         10                 In the case of this building, there

         11  was nothing. There was only one thing that the

         12  fought for, because there was nothing else to fight

         13  for.  And he lost out on that.  So, his disavow of

         14  this building carries much, much greater effect than

         15  any comments that he may have made on the other

         16  buildings that Mary Beth Betts alluded to.

         17                 She also alluded, as has the

         18  designation report, to Egyptian Revival.  However,

         19  in her testimony she did not talk about Egyptian

         20  Revival, she talked about the ancient Egyptian

         21  temples.  Well the ancient Egyptian temples have

         22  only the extreme battering of the walls, the tilting

         23  of the walls, and the extreme coved cornice.  Those

         24  ancient buildings did not have any decorative

         25  devices beyond that.  However, Egyptian Revival,
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          2  which was an early 19th Century aesthetic movement,

          3  had much decorative material.  And one of the

          4  greatest Egyptian Revival buildings was right here,

          5  not so terribly far away, it was the original tombs.

          6  It was called the tombs because it looked like an

          7  Egyptian tomb. I have two pictures with me, which I

          8  will give to the Subcommittee, that will illustrate,

          9  exactly what Egyptian Revival Architecture looks

         10  like.  And if they would, that is the tombs that was

         11  on Center Street, and I think it was Leonard Street,

         12  where at the moment I believe there is just a

         13  parking lot.  And if you would care to compare that

         14  to the photograph of the Kent Avenue building, you

         15  will see that the claim that the Kent Avenue

         16  Building is Egyptian Revival is positively

         17  ludicrous.

         18                 But more than that, assertions that

         19  184 Kent Avenue is both Egyptian Revival and

         20  Modernist are absolutely preposterous.   Those

         21  design concepts are mutually contradictory. A

         22  building cannot be both at the same time.

         23                 This is a former industrial building,

         24  and much was said in the designation report about

         25  the industrial function of 184 Kent Avenue with a
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          2  great recitation of all of the things that went on

          3  inside the building.  The industrial function of

          4  Kent Avenue was never evident from its exterior

          5  appearance.  And it has now totally vanished from

          6  the interior.  So, this is not a historical monument

          7  to industrial architecture.

          8                 Claims made by proponents of landmark

          9  designation for 184 Kent Avenue are factually

         10  deficient.  They are over- blown hyperbole, intended

         11  to hide the reality that there is no special

         12  significance to this building.  Beyond any doubt 184

         13  Kent Avenue is not of landmark quality.  And it does

         14  not meet the specific requirements for designation

         15  as set forth in the governing Landmarks Law.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

         18  Next.

         19                 MR. GRUZEN:  Dear Council Members, I

         20  am Jordan Gruzen, a partner in Gruzen, Samton, an

         21  architectural firm with over 45 years of

         22  professional experience.  And has been extensively

         23  involved with landmarks such as the current

         24  renovation of the Bush Building on 42nd Street and

         25  Time Square, the Aquilar Library in Upper Manhattan,
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          2  and buildings in historic districts, such as the

          3  Lowell Hotel in the Upper East Side Historic

          4  District, for which we received an award.

          5                 Before I was asked to design this

          6  renovation, I had passed the building many times, on

          7  foot, in a car, even on bicycle, and I never was

          8  impressed by its design quality.  I believe that

          9  this building can be sensitively and adaptively

         10  reused, almost doubling its number of housing units.

         11    If I thought otherwise, I never would have

         12  accepted this commission, because I also love Cass

         13  Gilbert.  As a matter of fact, I moved my offices

         14  into his building at 90 West Street and had just

         15  finished renovating it when 9/11 struck, and the

         16  office was destroyed.  And we had to move out.  This

         17  building has no comparison with a building such as

         18  90 West Street.

         19                 The decision to designate this

         20  property as a landmark is not supported by the

         21  Historical Record.  Proponents of designation claim

         22  that the building was influential in the development

         23  of early modern architecture and cited by notable

         24  European architects in their treatises.  This is

         25  erroneous. While American Industrial architecture
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          2  was indeed an influence on the development of

          3  modernism, Austin, Nichols played no role in this

          4  development.  The references cited in the Landmark

          5  designation make no reference to 184 Kent.  To claim

          6  that 184 Kent exerted any influence on the

          7  development of early modern architecture, as

          8  claimed, is false history and is contradicted by the

          9  historical record.

         10                 The same proponents claim that this

         11  building is an example of the Egyptian Revival style

         12  in architecture due to the two elements previously

         13  referred to, the battering of the walls and the

         14  large curved cornice.  The slight battering of the

         15  walls, and I should say it is almost imperceptible,

         16  and the coved cornice, which is a very common

         17  architectural gesture and it is not uniquely tied to

         18  this movement or any movement, you can see it

         19  everywhere in Italy, Spain, and France, and in this

         20  country in buildings of past centuries.  There was

         21  no Egyptian Revival movement contemporaneous with

         22  184 Kent, nor did it spur a revival.  One eighty-

         23  four Kent is emphatically not Egyptian Revival and

         24  it had no influence on the architecture of the time.And

         25  this building also cannot be a precursor to
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          2  modernism as well as a revival to historical style.

          3  The assertation that it can be both strains

          4  credibility and appears ridiculous.

          5                 The proponents of designation claim

          6  significance for the building's use of reinforced

          7  concrete.  My firm has worked extensively in this

          8  medium and we have become specialist in exploring

          9  the expressive potential of that material.  I cite

         10  our Chatham Towers, just look out that window two

         11  blocks away. It is one of the outstanding concrete

         12  buildings in this city. One in which the Chairman of

         13  the Commission has asked me to talk to the residents

         14  about the possibility of it becoming a landmark.

         15  There is nothing unusual about the structural system

         16  or the exterior finish of 184 Kent.  Nor was it one

         17  of the largest reinforced concrete buildings of its

         18  time.

         19                 In noted contrast to the Brooklyn

         20  Army Terminal, also designed by Cass Gilbert, which

         21  is recognized as a very significant reinforced

         22  concrete structure, 184 Kent was never referred to

         23  by Gilbert or given very little press coverage

         24  during its time.  It is a minor work produced by a

         25  very busy firm with a varied practice.  It is not a

                                                            70

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  singular work and may be grouped with a host of

          3  other reinforced concrete buildings along the New

          4  York Waterfront.  It was part of an industrial

          5  vernacular and not a singular work.  It lacks the

          6  requisite significance to merit designation.

          7                 I respectfully submit that in my

          8  professional opinion, 184 Kent Avenue does not

          9  satisfy the demanding criteria for designation as a

         10  landmark.  And I urge the Council to reject

         11  designation.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.  Do

         13  any of my colleagues have any questions?   Seeing

         14  none, I thank you very much.  Okay, the next panel

         15  we are going to be calling up six people.  And if I

         16  can ask the Sergeant- at- Arms to please set six

         17  seats.  Sybil Young, Franklin Tolbert, is that

         18  correct, Kate Wood, Simien Bankoff, and Roger Lang.

         19  I need one more.  And Lisa Kersavage, please.  I am

         20  going to ask you again, to testify, but please try

         21  to add to what has been said.  And we are ready

         22  whenever you are ready.

         23                 MS. YOUNG:  Hello. My name is Sybil

         24  Young and I am here presenting a letter from the

         25  Cass Gilbert Society.  And I am just going to read a
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          2  portion of it to save time.

          3                  "The officers and board of the Cass

          4  Gilbert Society, on behalf of its members, are

          5  pleased to support the designation of the Austin,

          6  Nichols and Company Warehouse, 184 Kent Avenue,

          7  Brooklyn as a New York City landmark.  The Cass

          8  Gilbert Society, a Minnesota- based, non- profit

          9  corporation was founded in 1998 to preserve and

         10  enhance the nation's cultural heritage through

         11  advancing scholarship in and appreciation of Cass

         12  Gilbert's work.

         13                 In a retrospective of Gilbert's

         14  career following his death in 1934, two

         15  contemporaries called Gilbert a master of style.

         16  Some have wondered at the apparent lack of style in

         17  Gilbert's warehouse and industrial designs.  In

         18  1921, one critic called the Austin, Nichols and

         19  Company Warehouse "an excellent example of the

         20  modern adaptation of the Egyptian architecture to

         21  the present day requirements of commercialism."

         22  More recent critics, with different sensibilities

         23  have dubbed it "protomodern."  More to the point,

         24  Gilbert knew that a warehouse was not a courthouse,

         25  or a skyscraper, or a public library, or any other
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          2  type of building that required a more elaborate

          3  style. He wrote in 1911, "I have tried to choose a

          4  style in each case which I thought best adapted to

          5  the needs."  For industrial or warehouse buildings,

          6  like Austin, Nichols, he believed that simple,

          7  unadorned forms were the appropriate ones to use.

          8                 At the same time, those simple,

          9  unadorned forms have their own beauty, as depicted

         10  in at least two renderings of the Austin, Nichols

         11  and Company Warehouse, made in 1912 and 1913 by

         12  Thomas R. Johnson.  Gilbert's professional pride in

         13  the building is evidence by two design sketches that

         14  he submitted to a 1916 exhibition, three years after

         15  the Austin, Nichols and Company Warehouse was

         16  completed.

         17                 The designation of the Austin,

         18  Nichols and Company Warehouse would add to the

         19  distinguished roster of buildings by Cass Gilbert.

         20  Further the designation would enhance the

         21  understanding and appreciation of a lesser known,

         22  but equally important part of Gilbert's work.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 MR. TOLBERT:  I am Frampton Tolbert,

         25  I will be reading the testimony of the Roeblings

                                                            73

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  Chapter of the Society for Industrial Archeology.

          3  And I will just summarize it because it does repeat

          4  a lot of what other people will be entering today.

          5                  "Dear Council Member Felder:

          6                 On behalf of the Roebling Chapter,

          7  Society for Industrial Archeology, I urge you to

          8  support the landmark designation of the Austin,

          9  Nichols and Company Warehouse at 184 Kent Avenue.

         10                 This project resulted in Gilbert and

         11  Turner collaborating again on the Brooklyn Army

         12  Terminal.  In a memorandum in the New York

         13  Historical Society's archives related to this U.S.

         14  Army Supply Base, it is noted, "When the United

         15  States entered the conflict in April 1917, Gilbert

         16  immediately offered his services.  Not until January

         17  1918, however, did Gilbert finally have the

         18  opportunity to serve his country.  That month H.C.

         19  Turner, president of Turner Construction Company,

         20  approached Gilbert about collaborating on an

         21  extensive series of warehouses and docks for the War

         22  Department."

         23                 As an artifact of our city's

         24  industrial waterfront, as an example of innovative

         25  work by a world- class architect, the Austin,
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          2  Nichols and Company Warehouse is worthy of

          3  designation as a New York City landmark.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

          5  much.  Next.

          6                 MR. LANG:  Good day, Chairman Felder

          7  and members of the Subcommittee.  I am Roger Lang,

          8  speaking on behalf of the New York Landmarks

          9  Conservancy.

         10                 The Conservancy supported this

         11  designation.  We commend the Landmarks Preservation

         12  Commission for taking this step.  As you have heard

         13  today, it was not a hasty or ill considered action.

         14  The designation report in Chairman Tierney's

         15  testimony, gave you ample evidence that the

         16  Commission acted properly and expertly in concluding

         17  that this building has the significance to merit the

         18  protection of the Landmarks Law.

         19                 Being a landmark does not preclude

         20  its owner from making an appropriate alteration to

         21  the facade or adding new penthouses.  The Commission

         22  has an excellent track record of approving such

         23  proposals, which enable the owners of old industrial

         24  buildings to find adaptive uses which are

         25  economically viable.
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          2                 Now we ask you to ensure that this

          3  landmark is not inappropriately altered in the

          4  future by sustaining this designation as a City

          5  landmark.  We urge you to do so, notwithstanding the

          6  opposition you have heard today from the owners,

          7  their consultants, and Council Member Yassky.

          8                 The City Council has traditionally

          9  given great deference to the local member's views on

         10  any issue within his/her district.  But this strikes

         11  us as an unusual situation.   This landmark can be

         12  both preserved and redeveloped.  We respectfully

         13  suggest that the merits here are compelling and

         14  transcend the conventional political calculus.

         15                 Historically, this City Council has

         16  been judicious in sparing in its use of the ultimate

         17  power in the designation process.  The body has

         18  rarely overturned landmark designations, only five

         19  times in 14 years.  So when you vote today please

         20  say, aye, to sustain this designation.

         21                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         22  present the Conservancy's views.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

         24  Next, please.

         25                 MR. BANKOFF:  Good afternoon,

                                                            76

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  Chairman Felder and Councilman Yassky.  I am Simein

          3  Bankoff, Executive Director of the Historics

          4  District Council.  HDC is pleased to be before you

          5  today and to support the designation of the Austin,

          6  Nichols Building.

          7                 We believe that the Landmarks

          8  Commission's action in designating this building is

          9  very much in keeping with the City Council's plans

         10  for the Greenpoint/Williamsburg waterfront at

         11  expressed in the major rezoning action that was

         12  passed earlier this year.  As noted by the City

         13  Planning Commission, the R6 zoning recently approved

         14  for the site, allows an FAR of 2.43, which actually

         15  allows for half the as built land.  Therefore the

         16  building as built, has twice the allowable FAR.

         17                 Furthermore, through the use of

         18  Section 74- 711 of the Zoning Resolution which

         19  allows landmark properties to apply for bulk and use

         20  waivers, the building is actually more viable than

         21  otherwise.  The owners' representatives are very

         22  sophisticated land- use practitioners and can

         23  counsel him appropriately.

         24                 Furthermore, this designation

         25  exemplifies the Council's commitment to
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          2  transparency, public involvement, and representation

          3  in government.  Over the past year, the Council has

          4  held an unprecedent number of oversight hearings on

          5  the workings of the LPC.  One of the chief

          6  complaints that arose from community groups about

          7  the agency is their lack of response to community

          8  interest, which resulted in the introduction of new

          9  legislation that would enable the Council to force

         10  the LPC to hold hearings on proposed sites.

         11  Fortunately, that does need to happen here.  The

         12  designation of the Austin, Nichols Warehouse was

         13  brought forward by the community as evidenced by the

         14  petitions and the postcards that I have submitted to

         15  you, and has overwhelming professional and popular

         16  support.  The experts who have been lined- up

         17  against the designation are all in the employ of the

         18  owner, who seems to be acting from the perspective

         19  that landmark designation will cause an economic

         20  hardship.

         21                 I have neither the time, nor the

         22  energy here to talk about the hardship tribunal

         23  process, which does exist for landmarking.  But let

         24  me just go as far to say that, if indeed there is a

         25  real cause, which I do not believe there is, there
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          2  is currently going through it.   Economic hardship

          3  should not be a requirement for the Council to act.

          4  There is a process that exists and they should use

          5  that.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

          8  much.  I just want to interrupt by mentioning that

          9  if anybody is here for the Parks Committee that is

         10  being held, no.  Okay, erase that.  Next, please.

         11                 MS. KERSAVAGE:  Good afternoon.  I am

         12  Lisa Kersavage, speaking on behalf of the Municipal

         13  Arts Society.  MAS strongly supports the designation

         14  of this very significant building on the

         15  Williamsburg Waterfront.  We believe the record

         16  before the Landmarks Preservation Commission was

         17  clear on the outstanding merits of the Austin,

         18  Nichols and Company Warehouse. This building

         19  deserves the protection of the law, notwithstanding

         20  the opposition of its owners, and we ask that you

         21  uphold the designation of this historic building.

         22                 Before I read my testimony, I just

         23  wanted to comment on the building permit for

         24  alterations to the facade. From what I understand,

         25  the permit was applied for after the Landmarks
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          2  Commission calendared the building.  As you know,

          3  and I am certain the owners representatives know,

          4  when the Commission calendars a building, it is

          5  under protection of the Commission and the Landmarks

          6  Law.  I raise this point because it certainly seems

          7  worth investigating whether this is a legal and

          8  valid building permit.

          9                 The Municipal Art Society has a

         10  special interest in this neighborhood, as we

         11  undertook a survey, along with members of the

         12  community, to identify significant historic

         13  buildings that were ignored in the Environmental

         14  Impact Statement for the recent rezoning of

         15  Greenpoint/Williamsburg.  And I have distributed the

         16  results of our survey to you today.  The Austin,

         17  Nichols Building was one of only 12 unprotected

         18  historic resources that were included in the EIS.

         19  The building was clearly identified as eligible for

         20  designation as a New York City landmark, as well as

         21  eligible for listing on the State and National

         22  Registers.  Designation of this building is proper

         23  mitigation for the negative impacts on the

         24  neighborhood's historic resources caused by the

         25  rezoning.
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          2                 With the impending influx of

          3  development in the neighborhoods, these

          4  neighborhoods will soon be dramatically altered.

          5  They both have a long and venerable past, and there

          6  remains a wealth of buildings related to their

          7  history.  Without the designation of key historic

          8  buildings, we run the risk of losing the character,

          9  history, and sense of place of these neighborhoods.

         10                 With nearly half- a- million square

         11  feet of floor space in a thriving neighborhood, it

         12  is hard to imagine that 184 Kent Avenue is not

         13  economically viable, even in its current

         14  configuration.  It is built significantly over bulk,

         15  even with the rezoning.  We ask that you uphold the

         16  designation.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.  Next

         19  please.

         20                 MS. WOOD:  Thank you.  My name is

         21  Kate Wood, I am here to speak on behalf of Landmark

         22  West in strong support of this designation.  Others

         23  have spoken and will speak articulately on the

         24  landmark merits of the warehouse.  I am here to

         25  speak more directly to the process.   I am very
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          2  pleased to be here testifying before you today.

          3  Thank you for this opportunity, as well as for the

          4  opportunities to testify before you so many times

          5  over the past few months, over the past year.

          6  Because I believe that that says a lot about how

          7  engaged and how serious this Council is about its

          8  landmarks, the landmarks process, and appropriately

          9  so.

         10                 But with that authority comes great

         11  responsibility.  A responsibility to recognize when

         12  the Landmarks Commission is operating in line with

         13  its mandate to preserve the architectural heritage

         14  of our city.  And I believe that I speak for most of

         15  the people in the preservation community when I say,

         16  that this is exactly the kind of situation where the

         17  LPC must be expected to act, to identify and protect

         18  a manifestly significant building in the context of

         19  development pressures that are intensified by recent

         20  rezoning and other plans to the area.

         21                 The Landmarks Commission plays a

         22  crucial role in the checks and balances designed to

         23  provide a rationale, sustainable, liveable, and far

         24  sided basis for development. Please bare in mind

         25  that neither the LPC, nor I, nor many of our
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          2  colleagues have anything to gain by this

          3  designation, except pride, confidence, and comfort

          4  in our City's ability to preserve its past, to make

          5  sure that we leave to our children a city that is

          6  every bit as layered, complex, diverse, and

          7  beautiful as the one we enjoy now.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         10  much.  Do any of my colleagues have any questions?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Mr. Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  One moment

         13  please.  Anyone who is here for Parks Committee or

         14  for Planning, those two Committees will be holding

         15  their hearings in the room to my left. If you are

         16  here for those two committees, but you would rather

         17  stay with us, you can stay here as long as you want.

         18    Councilman Yassky.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Chair Felder,

         20  I intend not to speak again because I know you have

         21  so much to get through here today.  But I thought

         22  that the testimony of the panel preceding this was

         23  extraordinary.  I mean it was so lucid, in if I

         24  understand it, the arguments for designation that it

         25  is based on the architect, based on the Egyptian
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          2  Revival, the contributions of this building to the

          3  Egyptian Revival movement, or the embodiment of the

          4  Egyptian Revivalism, and then the same as modernism.

          5    And I as I thought that those arguments were

          6  really demolished by the previous panel.  And I just

          7  want to ask, I am not going to ask everyone, but

          8  maybe just Mr. Bankoff.  Do you have a response to

          9  what Mr. Norman and Mr. Alpern said on the lack of a

         10  basis for calling this an Egyptian Revivalist

         11  building or a distinctive contribution to modernism?

         12                 MR. BANKOFF:  Thank you for the

         13  opportunity. Frankly, I think that what they were

         14  doing was creating a straw man to knock it down.

         15  The point is that the Landmarks Commission, in their

         16  authority as a professional agency, and Mary Beth

         17  Betts as a professional Cass Gilbert scholar, having

         18  based on her reading of Gilbert's uvea (phonetic)

         19  and also their viewpoint of the importance of this

         20  building as an industrial artifact, as an early

         21  model industrial building concrete warehouse, felt

         22  within the context of Williamsburg to the importance

         23  of the Brooklyn waterfront, that this a building

         24  worthy of being preserved.

         25                 We can quibble about Egyptian
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          2  Revival.  We can quibble about Art Deco verses Art

          3  Modern.  We can quibble about what you mean by

          4  modern.  Does modern stop in 1925?  Does modern

          5  start post- World War II?  These are, in essence,

          6  things that people who have Doctorates base their

          7  doctorates upon.  The point is that this building is

          8  significantly, visually, and historically part of

          9  the neighborhood, part of the industrial heritage of

         10  New York City, part of the industrial heritage of

         11  the area.  And therefore, a significant one.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Thank you.

         13  That actually did answer my question.  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes, I am sorry

         15  that I did not mention earlier that the only one

         16  that you allowed to clap for is me.  There is no- -

         17  thank you, thank you.   No that is not true.  The

         18  only thing you are allowed to do is give Bill

         19  Perkins a standing ovation.  How do you like that?

         20  No, this is not a rally of any sort.  You can smile.

         21    You can frown.  Do whatever you want, but no

         22  noise.  We do not want to turn this into something

         23  that it should not be.  I thank the panel.  And we

         24  will now call the next panel.  Paul Selver, Ken

         25  Fisher, and David Herowitz (phonetic).
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  In the

          3  panel who wants to go first?

          4                 MR. FISHER:  I will.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Okay, we

          6  are pleased to welcome a former member of this

          7  distinguished body.

          8                 MR. FISHER:  Members of the

          9  Committee, my name is Ken Fisher,  I am Special

         10  Counsel to the owner.  I have written statements,

         11  but  I want to address specifically some of the

         12  questions that you have asked and some of the

         13  testimony that you have heard.

         14                 First of all, I would to put in the

         15  context whether this was a great industrial

         16  artifact.  When the Austin, Nichols Company printed

         17  their letterhead and put a picture of the building

         18  on it, which shows lots of other buildings that look

         19  like it, they did not even bother to use the Cass

         20  Gilbert design. And we can pass this around.

         21                 When the Roebling Society, which just

         22  testified, held a conference in New York, 300 people

         23  spending four days, and putting out a 96- page book

         24  in 2002, about the important industrial buildings in

         25  Brooklyn, they did not even mention this building,
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          2  not even as a footnote to the Brooklyn Army

          3  Terminal. And we can pass this around as well.

          4                 Now there were a couple of technical

          5  questions that you asked before and I would like to

          6  address them.  One has to do with the question

          7  whether the building can be used for housing, you

          8  will hear more about that later.

          9                 But you should also know that the

         10  Board of Standards and Appeals has granted two

         11  variances having made the hardship findings already.

         12    And the first of those merely allowed residential,

         13  the second one allowed part of the interior to be

         14  scooped up and put on top of the building, which is

         15  the crux of the renovation because the air and light

         16  in the building is deficient, and a hardship finding

         17  has been made.

         18                 And I think it is very significant

         19  that where Chair Tierney mentioned the BSA, he said,

         20  they got notice of it, but they did not begin the

         21  calendaring process until later.  And by the way,

         22  the permit to remove the windows was granted before

         23  the application, the item was calendared.

         24                 Look, there is a lot we can say about

         25  this building, but I just want to make one point to
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          2  you.  You know, this is an individual designation.

          3  It is not about a historic district.  Lots of folks

          4  have said they don't want to change the character of

          5  the waterfront.  This is an individual designation.

          6  It is a high standard under the statute.  This is

          7  not Lake Woebegone (phonetic) where everybody was

          8  above average.  Every building doesn't deserve

          9  individual designation under the Landmarks Law, and

         10  this building certainly does not.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Thank

         13  you.

         14                 MR. SELVER:  Mr. Chairman, members of

         15  the Subcommittee, my name is Paul Selver.  I am a

         16  member of the firm of Kramer, Levin, Naftalis, and

         17  Frankel, and I appear today as Special Land Use

         18  Counsel to the owner of 184 Kent Avenue.

         19                 This is an administrative proceeding,

         20  and the administrative record of the designation

         21  demonstrates that this building is not special in

         22  any of the ways a landmark is legally required to

         23  be.  It demonstrates that the building is neither

         24  the largest, most innovative, the best, or the most

         25  important of the class of buildings to which it
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          2  belongs, however that class is defined.

          3                 The record also establishes that

          4  there is no evidence of associational significance

          5  in any of the buildings X'd in features, and it

          6  shows that the building is, at best, a second rate

          7  work of the architect, a building described by

          8  Gilbert, himself, as unsatisfactory.

          9                 We are therefore disappointed that so

         10  far, at least until the testimony this morning, the

         11  Commission has chosen to ignore these simple facts

         12  and to rest its designation on concludery (sic)

         13  statements as to the building's significance, and

         14  unsupported inferences as to its influence.  The

         15  reports failure to address this record reinforces

         16  our contention that the record is devoid of hard

         17  evidence contradicting these facts.

         18                 The New York City Administrative Code

         19  gives the City Council the final authority over

         20  whether a building should or should not be

         21  designated.  It does not require the Council to

         22  defer to the decisions of the Landmarks Preservation

         23  Commission. To the contrary, it provides

         24  unconditionally that the Council may "modify or

         25  disapprove" any designation made by the Commission.
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          2  The only requirement is that the City Council's

          3  decision be rationally based on the administrative

          4  record of the designation proceeding, and that is

          5  the Appellate Division talking.

          6                 We respectfully submit that the City

          7  Council approval of the designation of 184 Kent

          8  Avenue would be without support in that factual

          9  record, and would therefore be irrational,

         10  arbitrary, and capricious.  Under the circumstances

         11  the Council has a duty to exercise its authority

         12  under the Administrative Code and to disapprove the

         13  designation, we urge it to do so.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Right on

         16  time.  Go ahead.

         17                 MR. HEROWITZ:  Member of the Council,

         18  good afternoon.  My name is David Herowitz speaking

         19  against designation of 184 Kent Avenue.  I am an

         20  independent author and researcher, and I live at the

         21  building.  The Landmarks Commission designation

         22  report neglect or omits many relevant facts

         23  contained in the historical record which discounts

         24  the notion that 184 Kent Avenue has any of the

         25  special qualities that would qualify it for
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          2  landmarks' status.

          3                 I would like to use my brief time to

          4  direct the Committee's attention to one or two of

          5  the most telling of those facts.  The designation

          6  report makes much of the notion that the subject

          7  property is an early example of concrete

          8  architecture stressing the relationship of the

          9  building structure to the material.  However, the

         10  record makes it abundantly clear that the decision

         11  to build in concrete was made purely for economic

         12  reasons and had no demonstrable effect on Cass

         13  Gilbert's Rich Design Concept, thus a Memo of March

         14  24th, 1913 states, and it was up there, it is not

         15  there now.

         16                 Mr. Havermeyer discussed with Mr.

         17  Gilbert the comparative merits of concrete and steel

         18  construction.  Mr. Gilbert recommended that the

         19  matter be left open for trading advantage and stated

         20  that if it was decided to build in concrete, that

         21  would be entirely agreeable to him.  This statement,

         22  and several others like it, was ignored in the

         23  designation report. More surprisingly, the

         24  designation report discounts and does not even cite

         25  Gilbert's only direct comment on what became the
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          2  final design of the building.

          3                 On December 16th, 1913, his assistant

          4  reports that when Gilbert learned that his plan for

          5  the exterior facade was rejected for reasons of

          6  economy, Gilbert said, "that he was not opposed with

          7  carrying out their directions, but he wished them to

          8  understand at this time that he believe the result

          9  would be unsatisfactory so that there could be no

         10  blame attached the his office, or his own part in

         11  the matter of when the building was completed."

         12                 Now I live in the building, and I

         13  love Williamsburg and I love the area.  The building

         14  leaks like a sieve, it needs major work in order to

         15  be habitable.  My apartment is 16 X 75 with three

         16  tiny windows at one end.  And I just want to say

         17  that in this particular case, I really believe the

         18  record means what it says.  I did this research on

         19  my own initiative, because I wanted to know what the

         20  truth was.  And that truth does not the support

         21  designation.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Just

         24  maybe for the record it would be good to know,

         25  maybe, Mr. Fisher might like to answer, the current
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          2  permit for alterations, what does that contemplate?

          3                 MR. FISHER:  Basically it would allow

          4  us to remove the windows.  And I just want to

          5  clarify the record, the permit, Landmarks is that

          6  apparently the Committee within Landmarks Commission

          7  voted to calendar the item at the time that the

          8  permit was issued.  We didn't know that, it wasn't

          9  put on the City record on the calendar until

         10  sometime afterwards.  But the bottom line is that we

         11  would be allowed, today, if we chose, to remove the

         12  windows.  I think this may fall into the category of

         13   "no good deed goes unpunished."  And if I have

         14  heard my friend, Counsel to the Commission

         15  correctly, it is almost as if future applications

         16  might be held hostage, depending on whether we

         17  exercise that right or not.

         18                 But I would remind the members of

         19  this Committee that not long ago there was a Morris

         20  Lapidis (phonetic) building in similar circumstances

         21   - -

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Wait,

         23  wait, wait, Mr. Fisher with all due respect, you

         24  know like we say in the courts, please answer the

         25  question.
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          2                 MR. FISHER:  The answer to the

          3  question is, in our opinion, we have a valid right -

          4   -

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  No, that

          6  is not the question.  The question was, what does

          7  the permit, permit?  What is contemplated to be done

          8  to the building?

          9                 MR. FISHER:  It is an alteration

         10  permit that would allow us to enlarge the windows by

         11  basically taking the three windows and making one

         12  large window.  As Mr. Herowitz has testified, he has

         13  got three tiny little windows, that would become a

         14  large picture window, pursuant to that permit.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  And then

         16  something on the roof, you would be doing?

         17                 MR. FISHER:  This particular permit

         18  doesn't effect that.  The plans contemplated by the

         19  Board of Standards and Appeals variance, which was

         20  granted, was to scoop out some of the courtyard, so

         21  that you don't have these long, deep apartments with

         22  no light and air, and to put some of that bulk on

         23  the roof. It is a better design, better light in

         24  there for the building.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  And as I
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          2  take it, or as I understand it, what is implied in

          3  what you say is that those steps in total would be

          4  difficult to do, if the building was landmarked?

          5                 MR. FISHER:  Absolutely, without

          6  question.  The fact that adding to the roof would be

          7  very difficult.  The renovations that would be

          8  necessary to deal with the interior systems, as Mr.

          9  Herowitz just testified to, all of which would be

         10  extraordinarily difficult.  Whether they are

         11  impossible or not remains to be seen, but it

         12  certainly would not be in keeping with the rezoning

         13  that you just approved.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  So the

         15  conversion into, as I understand it now, which I

         16  didn't understand before, it is already partially

         17  residential.

         18                 MR. FISHER:  Correct.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  But the

         20  conversion to a more, to a better residential design

         21  is what is contemplated.

         22                 MR. FISHER:  And one other fact that

         23  I think may be significant, although it is not

         24  necessarily specific to the Landmark Designation,

         25  under the rezoning the renovations that we would do
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          2  would be accompanied by creating public waterfront

          3  access at our expense as a mandatory component of

          4  the, under the rezoning.  That would not be required

          5  unless we were changing the configuration of the

          6  building.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  So there

          8  is no current contemplation of demolition of the

          9  building, just alterations.

         10                 MR. FISHER:  Only significant

         11  alterations.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Thank

         13  you.  Any other questions?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you,

         15  Councilman Koppell for Chairing.

         16                 Okay, B. Colby Hamilton, Lauren

         17  Talbot, did you testify already, it sounded

         18  familiar, no, okay.  Kimberly Miller, Alice, I can't

         19  read the second name, Ri - -  Rider, Reader? I'm

         20  sorry, Rich, okay.  Jasper Goldman, and Phyllis

         21  Yampolsky, and that is it.  And again I ask you to

         22  please restrict your testimony to something that was

         23  not said before.  We are ready, whoever wants to

         24  start first can go ahead.  Please identify yourself

         25  for the record.
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          2                 MR. GOLDMAN:  Good afternoon, Council

          3  members and Chairman Felder, and Councilman Yassky.

          4  My name is Jasper Goldman, and I am speaking today

          5  on behalf of the Metropolitan Waterfront Alliance, a

          6  project of the Municipal Arts Society in support of

          7  the designation of the Austin, Nichols Warehouse as

          8  a New York City Landmark.

          9                 As we stated in our testimony at the

         10  Landmarks and Preservation Committee, the importance

         11  of preserving significant, historic buildings along

         12  the East River is critical at a time when new

         13  residential high- rises and big box stores are

         14  poised to entirely change the character of the

         15  waterfront.

         16                 The Austin, Nichols Warehouse is one

         17  of those structures.  Without it, the East River

         18  will lose a vital part of its identity and

         19  connection to its past as a crucial artery for the

         20  City's wares.

         21                 The Metropolitan Waterfront Alliance

         22  is currently developing a project entitled, "The

         23  East River Heritage Trail." This trail and guidebook

         24  aims to create a linked network of industrial,

         25  historical structures along the East River.  The
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          2  Austin, Nichols Warehouse is included in this guide

          3  and honored as one of the most valuable remaining

          4  industrial structures simple for adaptive use along

          5  the river.

          6                 Additionally, on view at the Aubonne

          7  Center is an exhibit entitled, "Preservation On the

          8  Edge:  Our Threatened East River Heritage," which

          9  includes the Austin, Nichols Building.  At the

         10  opening last week, not only preservationists, but

         11  also water access advocates and others believe that

         12  a vibrant and diverse waterfront, signed in a

         13  petition, should encourage the designation of this

         14  building.

         15                 In conclusion, you have the power to

         16  determine if the new Brooklyn Waterfront pays homage

         17  to its past or ignores the structures and

         18  institutions which made New York a great city. We

         19  hope that we use this power to designate the

         20  building.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

         23  Next.

         24                 MR. HAMILTON:  My name is Colby

         25  Hamilton.  I am a member of the North Brooklyn
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          2  Greens.  Chairman Felder, Councilman Yassky, I am

          3  reading a letter from Mary Pat Thorton, President of

          4  the Brooklyn Heights Association, just to Chairman

          5  Tierney.

          6                  "I write on behalf of the Brooklyn

          7  Heights Association to commend the Commission for

          8  holding today's designation hearing on the Austin,

          9  Nichols and Company Warehouse. As I hope you know

         10  the BHA does not often reach outside the Brooklyn

         11  Heights Historic District to weigh- in on matters

         12  under review by the Commission.  However, in this

         13  case, we are addressing a very important, early 19th

         14  Century example of Brooklyn's industrial and

         15  commercial history built by Cass Gilbert, an

         16  architect of enormous statute, which could be at

         17  risk following the recent rezoning of Williamsburg

         18  Waterfront.

         19                 It is our understanding that the

         20  owner of 184 Kent Avenue has been successful in

         21  converting portions of this huge building to market-

         22  rate residential lofts.  But he recently attempted

         23  to build an oversized rooftop addition that would

         24  have destroyed the building's architectural

         25  identity.
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          2                 The Community Board who believes that

          3  further alterations of the building ought to be

          4  carried out under the Landmark Commission's

          5  oversight, rejected this addition.  We further

          6  understand that the Williamsburg community is being

          7  joined by the Williamsburg Waterfront Preservation

          8  Alliance, National Trust for Historic Preservation,

          9  New York State Preservation League, Municipal Art

         10  Society, New York State Landmarks Conservancy,

         11  Historic Districts Council, Vinegar Hill and DUMBO

         12  Neighborhood Associations, all calling for 184 Kent

         13  Avenue to be given a landmark protection that it

         14  surely merits.

         15                 Thus, it is bewildering and deeply

         16  disappointing for us to learn that our own Council

         17  Member David Yassky, who also represents the people

         18  of Williamsburg, may not recognize the preservation

         19  value of this fine building in his district.  And we

         20  hope that he will reconsider.

         21                 But regardless, we appeal to the

         22  Commission to do the right thing for Brooklyn and

         23  the City by designating the Austin, Nichols

         24  Warehouse as a New City Landmark."

         25                 Signed
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          2                 Mary Pat Thorton

          3                 President

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Next, please.

          5                 MS. LYNN:  I am Robin Lynn with the

          6  Municipal Art Society, I am reading testimony for

          7  Kimberly Miller, Director of Planning at the

          8  Municipal Art Society.

          9                  "This spring the City Council took

         10  the bold step of passing one of the most

         11  comprehensive waterfront plans in Brooklyn history.

         12  The advocates for East River were gratified that not

         13  only did you pass the waterfront access plan

         14  previewing an eventual network of 28 acres of

         15  waterfront esplanade and pocket parks, you also took

         16  the extra steps to create incentives to ensure that

         17  it would be permanently, public and accessible.

         18                 There are now concerns that

         19  landmarking the Austin, Nichols Building would

         20  interfere with the creation of this visionary

         21  greenway.  But upon further examination, it appears

         22  that keeping the Austin, Nichols in its present form

         23  should not preclude the construction of the required

         24  12- foot shorewalk.  In fact, it is our

         25  understanding that in earlier planning stages for

                                                            101

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  the waterfront, the developers, themselves,

          3  contended that they had enough bulkhead to

          4  accommodate the walkway without new construction

          5  over the water.

          6                 We have heard that one alternative to

          7  preserving the form of this landmark building is to

          8  create an arcade that routes the new greenway

          9  through the building's western edge. This would be a

         10  disappointing outcome.

         11                 Our research on the City's many

         12  privately owned, public spaces indicates that the

         13  arcade has the worst record of providing usable,

         14  accessible, public space.  Given the unique

         15  character and history of the Williamsburg

         16  Waterfront, we believe, instead that a shorewalk

         17  that weaves the neighborhood's history into the

         18  waterfront experience would better serve further,

         19  future residents of the neighborhood, and the people

         20  who will flock to the waterfront in the years to

         21  come.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

         23                 MS. RICH:  My name is Alice Rich.  I

         24  am a Williamsburg Area resident, and the building is

         25  important to me. I would also like to read a letter
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          2  from the Preservation League of New York State in

          3  support of the designation of the Austin, Nichols

          4  Warehouse as an individual New York City Landmark.

          5                  "The Preservation League of New York

          6  State is a statewide, non- profit organization

          7  dedicated to the protection of New York's diverse

          8  and rich heritage of historic buildings, districts,

          9  and landscapes.  The existence of an architect

         10  designed warehouse reflects the level to which

         11  manufacturing has risen in Brooklyn by 1913.

         12                 Consider how we would regard a

         13  company's decision to hire a well- known architect

         14  to design an industrial building today.  It would be

         15  a reflection of prosperity and confidence in the

         16  future, a very public promotion of a business.  The

         17  preservation of Cass Gilbert's Warehouse would add

         18  to the allure of the neighborhood.  Conversely,

         19  stripping the architectural character would

         20  eliminate the opportunity to distinguish the

         21  development from any other large scale new structure

         22  in the nation.

         23                 Designation will not prevent the

         24  owner's from bringing a 20th Century building into

         25  the 21st Century as a successful venture.  There are
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          2  examples all across New York State, a former

          3  industrial buildings which have rehabilitated in a

          4  way that preserves the unique characteristics of the

          5  building while providing for adaptive reuse.

          6                 On behalf of the Preservation League

          7  of New York State and our professional colleagues in

          8  New York City, I urge you to support the designation

          9  of the Austin, Nichols Warehouse. Thank you for your

         10  consideration."

         11                 MS. YAMPOLSKY:  Good afternoon,

         12  Councilman Felder and other Council people here.

         13  Thank you for allowing me to submit these comments

         14  without script that have come to me while I have

         15  been sitting and listening to these testimonies.

         16                 The name is Phyllis Yampolsky.  I

         17  represent the McCarren Park Conservancy.  I have

         18  been, in the past, New York City's First Artist in

         19  residence.  I submit here, please, a plea for the

         20  touch of the master.  Who is to say, who is to

         21  determine the professional from the bastard?

         22                 I met with Councilman Fisher to speak

         23  to him about the Austin, Nichols Building, we met at

         24  42nd and Park, after we left, I walked from 42nd to

         25  53rd and Park.  It is lined with magnificent, new
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          2  shiny, very luxurious towers.  And until you get to

          3  the Segram's building, none of those buildings is

          4  worth architectural significance.  So who is to be

          5  able to tell the touch of the master?

          6                 And of course we all know the example

          7  of the mistaken destruction of Penn Station.  So let

          8  us be very careful of the considerations and the

          9  decisions we make here now.  The Cass Gilbert

         10  Building, the Austin, Nichols Building is supremely

         11  simple.  So who is to tell that that simplicity and

         12  the proportions they are in do not represent the

         13  touch of the master? Because if they did not, we

         14  wouldn't even be here talking about it.  It is just

         15  a big white block.  But the proportions of those

         16  building, those windows, they are like music, da,

         17  da, da - - da, da, da - -  da, da, da, right?  The

         18  Beethoven's Fifth Symphony is da, da, da, da, very

         19  simple.  Who is to determine the touch of the

         20  master?

         21                 Of course you can say, well we can

         22  make, you know, a building like Vercois (phonetic),

         23  with picture windows, but --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Could you finish

         25  your testimony, please?
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          2                 MS. YAMPOLSKY: - -  but historically

          3  you destroy those windows to put the ordinary

          4  picture windows that are put in any loft building,

          5  and you get something much less.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

          7  much.  We will now take the next panel.  Erik

          8  Nelson, Nelser, did I get your name right?  Nelson,

          9  Rebecca Brillhart, Mark Nelson, Seth Johnson,

         10  Christabel Gough, did I get it right this time?

         11  Vanessa Gruen.

         12                 I am going to be less courteous, I'm

         13  sorry, you know we picked the witnesses randomly.

         14  So it is not like we --

         15                 MR. NELSON:  Apology accepted.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I'm sorry?

         17                 MR. NELSON:  Apology accepted.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.  But

         19  you are going to have to testify on anything that

         20  was not said.  You know, I am just sorry, because I

         21  think that is what is most helpful for us in making

         22  our decisions.  And you can start - -  Yes?  Yeah,

         23  you can, but you will not testify later.  No

         24  problem, thank you.

         25                 So who is it that you are giving your
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          2  space to? Good, we only have four, did we call six?

          3  Okay, I am just going to do this again, quickly,

          4  because some of them may have left. Erik Nelson, if

          5  you are here, good.  Rebecca Brillhart, are you in

          6  this room?  You do not want to speak?  Thank you,

          7  you are so far the best witness we have had today.

          8  Mark Nelson, Seth Johnson, and Vanessa Gruen, are

          9  you here?  Not.  Andrew Dolkart, was just there, we

         10  have four.  Two more please.  Francoise, do this for

         11  me, please?  She left?  Okay, so then I could have

         12  done it, I don't need you.  Martina Salisbury, are

         13  you here, come please.  And Eri Worden, it's Wilson?

         14    It doesn't look like Wilson to me.  Okay, there

         15  should be six chairs, okay.

         16                 Okay, we are ready, whoever wants to

         17  start first, please do, and identify yourself.

         18                 MS. WORDEN:  Hello, my name is Eri

         19  Worden. Although I am a professional in historic

         20  preservation and the Executive Director of Friends

         21  of the Upper East Side Historic Districts.  I am

         22  here to testify as an individual and as a prior

         23  tenant to 184 Kent Avenue, and a long- time resident

         24  of Williamsburg.

         25                 I will not go into the obvious
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          2  architectural and historic goal importance of this

          3  building, but I will comment on living there.  I was

          4  lucky enough to be a resident of the Austin, Nichols

          5  Warehouse for three years, that was until last month

          6  when I was served with an eviction notice dated for,

          7  move out date was December 31st, 2005.

          8                 As a tenant faced with unknown

          9  eviction date for over a year now, I contacted my

         10  Councilman, David Yassky, on numerous occasions

         11  hoping to find - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Excuse me.

         13                 MS. WORDEN:  Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Excuse me, I

         15  just want to ask you, are you going to testify on

         16  whether this property is worthy of designation?

         17                 MS. WORDEN:  Yes, I am, I will get to

         18  that in a moment.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I would

         20  appreciate that.

         21                 MS. WORDEN:  I think I have a minute

         22  left.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

         24                 MS. WORDEN:  Phone calls, emails have

         25  not been returned.  Living in the building as it is,
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          2  was an extraordinary experience.  We had views out

          3  of the so- called small windows of Manhattan Skyline

          4  and the Williamsburg Bridge.  Our apartment was

          5  1,500 square feet of space, and I ensure we were not

          6  paying a cheap rent.  Not a person walked into the

          7  apartment and wasn't amazed at the views and the

          8  sound of waves rolling in.  We loved living there.

          9                 I moved out, and I realize anything I

         10  say before this Committee will not change that.  But

         11  I do hope that you will uphold the rightful

         12  designation of this exceptional building.  It is

         13  absolutely false that this building cannot be

         14  developed, because it is a designated landmark.

         15  There are many designated buildings in New York City

         16  that have done so and done so successfully.  I

         17  review them almost daily at my job.

         18                 Please listen to us, the community,

         19  the preservationists, the Landmarks Preservation

         20  Commission, and the tenants, and uphold the

         21  designation of the Austin, Nichols and Company

         22  Warehouse as an individual landmark.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.  Next

         24  please.

         25                 MR. NELSON:  Good afternoon.  My name
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          2  is Erik Nelson.  I am a resident of the building

          3  currently, and I support the designation.  I would

          4  like to read a testimony by Paul Parkhill from Place

          5  in History.

          6                  "My name is Paul Parkhill, and I am

          7  a founder and co- director of Place in History, a

          8  Greenpoint- based non- profit organization that

          9  sponsors public history and community- based design

         10  projects about the neighborhoods of New York City.

         11  I also work as a Director of Planning and

         12  Development for the Greenpoint Manufacturing and

         13  Design Center, which is an industrial real estate

         14  developer.  Speaking in both capacities, I strongly

         15  urge the Landmarks Preservation Commission to

         16  designate this building a New York City Landmark.

         17                 North Brooklyn and Long Island City,

         18  two areas that have faced major rezonings in recent

         19  areas, are at particular risk of losing a

         20  substantial portion of their historic, physical

         21  fabric, as industrial properties are raised or

         22  modified beyond recognition.  It is obviously not

         23  possible for landmarks to play a watchdog or

         24  regulatory role for the majority of industrial

         25  properties facing conversion and demolition
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          2  pressures.  But it is nevertheless imperative that

          3  your agency intervene when the key building that

          4  define the fabric of a neighborhood are threatened.

          5  The Austin, Nichols and Company Building is a clear

          6  example of such a building."

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

          9  much.  Next please.

         10                 MR. MARK NELSON:  Good evening.  My

         11  name is Mark Nelson.  I am also a tenant of the

         12  building, and I am also for designation of the

         13  building.

         14                 I would like to touch on a few issues

         15  that were being argued earlier.  As far as the

         16  housing issue is concerned, the building can

         17  convert, can currently be converted to approximately

         18  200 moderately priced apartments, without having it

         19  effect any of the facade of the building.  If the

         20  facade is change the building, that will not effect

         21  the ability to add more permanence to the building,

         22  but just simply increase their value to high income

         23  sector.

         24                 As a current tenant in the building,

         25  the three small, so- called windows, are plenty
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          2  large and allow sufficient air flow for our loft in

          3  the building.

          4                 Also the current work permit

          5  effecting the facade of the building is for repair

          6  of the current facade only.  It does not mention in

          7  any way, shape or form about tearing out existing

          8  windows and adding a window sill, large picture

          9  frame window to the building.  And that current work

         10  permit does expire December 15th.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         12  much.  Next please.

         13                 MR. JOHNSON:  My name is Seth

         14  Johnson.  I will be reading this testimony on behalf

         15  of Laura Hoffman of the Bridge Park Pals.  Bridge

         16  Park Pals is a member organization of the Greenpoint

         17  Waterfront Association for Parks and Planning.

         18                  "I, Laura, am a Board member of

         19  GWAPP, and I chaired the CB1 Rezoning Task Force

         20  Parks and Open Space Subcommittee during the

         21  Greenpoint/Williamsburg Rezoning.

         22                 The Austin, Nichols Company and

         23  Warehouse is very important to the community on many

         24  more levels than just the physical beauty and

         25  historical architectural features.  It is a deep
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          2  passion of the community to celebrate and preserve

          3  its environmental, industrial, and commercial

          4  history throughout its waterfront park system.

          5  During the creation of the award winning

          6  Greenpoint/Williamsburg 197- a plans, and the

          7  Greenpoint/Williamsburg Rezoning Action, the

          8  community made it clear that natural and historic

          9  preservation surrounding its new waterfront park

         10  system was important.

         11                 The Park system that the Department

         12  of City Planning has laid out in its waterfront

         13  access plan is not yet created.  And parks are

         14  usually designed to reflect the character of the

         15  surrounding area.  If important waterfront,

         16  historical and architectural buildings, such as the

         17  Austin, Nichols and Company Warehouse are not

         18  preserved, our community will lose an important

         19  component in the creation of our natural, historical

         20  waterfront parks, as well.

         21                 I urge you to uphold the Landmark

         22  Preservation Commission's designation.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         24  much.  Next please.

         25                 MR. DOLKART:  My name is Andrew
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          2  Dolkart.  I am an architectural historian

          3  specializing in New York architecture and

          4  development of New York.  And I hold the James

          5  Morrison Professorship in Historic Preservation at

          6  Columbia where I teach about New York.

          7                 There is no question in my mind that

          8  the Austin, Nichols Warehouse is amongst the most

          9  significant industrial buildings in New York City.

         10  If I had more than two minutes, I could talk about

         11  modernism and the Egyptian issue and the history of

         12  use.  But what I would like to do particularly is to

         13  address and argument that was made, one particular

         14  argument, this is the argument that this is a second

         15  rate building, because it was not built to Cass

         16  Gilbert's initial design.

         17                 In the 30 years with which I have

         18  been involved with landmark issues in New York City,

         19  I can honestly say that I have never heard a more

         20  ridiculous argument against designation. Just how

         21  many buildings are there that actually get built to

         22  the architect's initial concept?  Very few.

         23  Architects work closely with their client's

         24  redesigning building to meet the needs and cost

         25  requirements of clients.  This happens all the time.
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          2                 Take, for example, the Brooklyn

          3  Academy of Music, a building that I am sure that you

          4  all know.  Architects' Faust, Hertz, and Talent 's

          5  initial design was for a grand, but boring, marble

          6  building, cost overruns Faust, Hertz, and Talent to

          7  redesign the building using brick and terracotta.

          8  The result, one of the great masterpieces of

          9  American Theater Architecture.

         10                 The Austin, Nichols Warehouse is no

         11  different. Cass Gilbert was asked to rethink his

         12  initial design and came up with the bulbi sublime

         13  concrete structure that now stands out on the

         14  waterfront.  The building also uses modernism in a

         15  really important way in that you have for one of the

         16  first times the expression of concrete is concrete.

         17  If you look at DUMBO where there are earlier

         18  concrete buildings, most of them are designed in

         19  imitation of stone, but that was not the case here.

         20  It is using a material for its materiality to give a

         21  powerful, unornamented statement, capping it with a

         22  cove corners, which indeed is an Egyptian form.  But

         23  to compare this to an early 19th Century tombs, is

         24  absolutely the height of absurdity, we are talking

         25  about 80 years difference.  A whole difference in
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          2  the idea of aesthetic.  It's Cass Gilbert reducing

          3  an historical form, as he did on many, many

          4  buildings, to its absolute essence by using this

          5  curved Egyptian form.

          6                 Anyway, I strongly support the

          7  designation of the Austin, Nichols Building.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

          9  much.  Next please.

         10                 MS. SALISBURY:  Hi, I am Martina

         11  Salisbury, and I am here today to support the

         12  Landmarks designation of the Austin, Nichols and

         13  Company Warehouse.  I am a proud resident of

         14  Williamsburg, a member of the New York Design

         15  Community, and until yesterday, I was a resident at

         16  184 Kent Avenue, where I have lived for three very

         17  happy years with my husband and baby daughter.

         18                 As a designer, I had planned to

         19  discuss how landmark designation might positively

         20  impact the building's redevelopment, remaining

         21  faithful to the building's original design, can be

         22  both historically useful and financially lucrative,

         23  if marketed the right way.  This can be seen in the

         24  adaptive reuse of some of Cass Gilbert's other New

         25  York City Landmarked buildings.  But I will let you
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          2  read that part of my testimony, see the pictures for

          3  yourselves, and read the numbers in the written

          4  testimony that I am submitting.

          5                 And simply say, this building can be

          6  developed, if it is landmarked.  It has already been

          7  successfully and sympathetically converted to

          8  residential use.  And until recently, there were

          9  over 150 people living there.

         10                 By the way, the building doesn't need

         11  overwhelming rooftop additions or bigger windows to

         12  make it more desirable. Someone has alluded to, more

         13  than one person has alluded to the BSA variance that

         14  the owners of this building have already received

         15  for constructing a rooftop addition.  This was a

         16  different architect, it was a much different scheme.

         17    It was for a two- story penthouse with setback.

         18                 The windows, by the way, are very

         19  big, they are not tiny.  My windows, my now former

         20  and very missed apartment, are 38 by 82, that is not

         21  tiny, I don't think, it is pretty big. These windows

         22  are visible from the top of the Empire State

         23  Building.  It is a highly visible building, you can

         24  see it from Long Island City, you can see it from

         25  Manhattan, you can see it from anywhere you stand on

                                                            117

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  the East River looking towards Williamsburg.  It is

          3  a beloved building in Williamsburg, it is an icon in

          4  the neighborhood.  As anyone who lives in

          5  Williamsburg and they know this building.  And I

          6  think it should be a landmark, and so do I, and I

          7  hope you will consider this.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         10  much.  Thank you to this panel.  And the final

         11  panel, we have, Gregory Dietrich, Siri Wilson,

         12  Heather Roslund, and Rolf Carle, I don't know if I

         13  pronounced that correctly.  Is there anyone that

         14  signed up to speak that has not been called?  Okay,

         15  thank you, we are ready.

         16                 MR. DIETRICH  Good afternoon.  My

         17  name is Gregory Dietrich, and I am an architectural

         18  historian.  I am here today to support the

         19  designation of the Austin, Nichols and Company

         20  Warehouse as a New York City Landmark.  I studied

         21  this building as a graduate student in Columbia

         22  University's historic preservation program, spending

         23  an entire semester pouring over 13 boxes of project

         24  correspondence, and folders of blueprints and

         25  sketches by its architect housed at the New York
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          2  Historical Society.

          3                 The findings of my research

          4  collaborate those of the New York State Office of

          5  Historic Preservation, which found the building to

          6  be eligible for the State and National registers,

          7  and the Landmark Preservation Commission's recent

          8  designation. In order to be considered for landmark

          9  status, an individual property must be at least 30

         10  years of age and have architectural, political,

         11  social, economic, and/or cultural significance

         12  relating to the City's heritage.

         13                 The Austin, Nichols and Company

         14  Warehouse is significant as a work of architecture

         15  for in body and in the design philosophy of Cass

         16  Gilbert.  Gilbert maintained that a building's

         17  appearance should reflect its use, and in the

         18  Austin, Nichols and Company Warehouse his first

         19  foray into concrete, industrial design, he chose a

         20  streamline design with Egyptian motifs on a scale to

         21  rival the ancients.  As a building dedicated to the

         22  conveyance and processing of food products for the

         23  largest wholesale grocery concern of its time,

         24  Gilbert not only succeeded in satisfying a landlord,

         25  who sought a first- rate building, for a first- rate
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          2  client, but also in paving the way for other

          3  projects such as the Brooklyn Army Terminal, and the

          4  RC Williams and Company Warehouse.

          5                 In addition, the building is

          6  significant for its economic contributions to the

          7  City's heritage as evidenced by its association with

          8  the Havermeyer Family, the suburban railroad magnets

          9  who commissioned it, and the Austin, Nichols and

         10  Company, the leading wholesale grocery concern for

         11  which it was custom designed.

         12                 I appeal to the Landmarks Public

         13  Siting and Maritime Uses Committee to ratify the

         14  Landmarks Preservation Commission's designation of

         15  this iconic resource to ensure that this vital piece

         16  of Brooklyn's past is preserved in a manner that

         17  does not disrupt its character defining features.

         18  And I thank you for your consideration.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         20  much.  Next please.

         21                 MR. CARLE:  Good afternoon.  My name

         22  is Rolf Carle.  I am the outreach coordinator for

         23  the Greenpoint/Williamsburg Waterfront Task Force.

         24  But today I speak on my own behalf.  The Task Force,

         25  by the way is a group that fought the TG, or is
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          2  fighting the TG Powerplant, 8 blocks away on the

          3  same waterfront.  But today I speak to you, as

          4  myself, I am a woodworker, in the neighborhood with

          5  experience in architectural restoration.  And the

          6  first rule, when approaching a job is always to

          7  respect what already exists, and change as little as

          8  possible.

          9                 I am also a 20- year resident of the

         10  Greenpoint and Williamsburg Community, who have seen

         11  a lot of change to our waterfront over the years.  I

         12  am here today in favor in landmark status for 184

         13  Kent Avenue, and I have outlined three brief reasons

         14  for this Committee to consider.

         15                 The first, as other people have said,

         16  that this is a prominent building, on a prominent

         17  location on the East River, and thousands, tens of

         18  thousands of tourists, daily, yearly go by this

         19  landmark.  The structure is not tucked away in some

         20  obscure corner of this great city.

         21                 Second, Cass Gilbert was a genius who

         22  worked intentionally on his designs.  To augment

         23  them in any way would be like painting a mustache on

         24  Leonardo's Mona Lisa, or perhaps a better analogy

         25  today would be to give the Statue of Liberty
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          2  implants.

          3                 My third and most important reason,

          4  however, for landmarking 184 Kent Avenue is in these

          5  documents known as the Greenpoint and Williamsburg

          6  197- a plans.  A lot of people that are here today

          7  were part of creating these plans, and I think, I

          8  always ask all the City Council members if they ever

          9  read them because this body adopted them and

         10  modified them.

         11                 These documents are a mandate from

         12  the people who have worked independently from City

         13  government in effect for free, because they love,

         14  Mr. Yassky, if you are in the room, because they

         15  love their community and want to protect its

         16  character.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Are you done?

         18                 MR. CARLE:  I have waited 45 minutes

         19  here.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  That does not

         21  have anything to do with it.  I gave you - -

         22                 MR. CARLE:  I am not done.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I gave you extra

         24  time, because I wasn't listening to you.

         25                 MR. CARLE:  Okay, another page.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  No, that is not

          3  going to work.  You can finish your sentence, but

          4  you can't have another page.

          5                 MR. CARLE:  Okay, I would like to

          6  finish my sentence.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  By the way, you

          8  can submit your testimony, which we will appreciate.

          9    If you have a sentence to complete, that we will

         10  be happy to listen to.

         11                 MR. CARLE:  The sentence that I will

         12  complete with will be a quote from the 197- a plan,

         13  which is, "In courage, growth along the waterfront

         14  consistent with the scale and character of the

         15  adjacent neighborhoods."  That is what is in these

         16  plans, and as Mr. Yassky brought up, if there was a

         17  policy that I am sure the 197- a plans would be

         18  looked at carefully.

         19                 Thank you, and I apologize for going

         20  over.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         22  much.  Next please.

         23                 MS. ROSLUND:  Good afternoon.  My

         24  name is Heather Roslund.  I am a Brooklyn Community

         25  Board 1 member, and have an architectural practice
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          2  on the North Side of Williamsburg.  I have testified

          3  in this room previously in my capacity as Chair of

          4  the Height and Bulk Committee of the Rezoning Task

          5  Force of CB1, and throughout the rezoning process

          6  and the 197- a process, as Rolf just mentioned.

          7                 One of our primary goals was to

          8  preserve the community's character.  We asked the

          9  rezoning respect the small scale and low- density of

         10  our existing fabric, and we got 35 to 40- story

         11  towers on our waterfront.

         12                 We asked that the rezoning reflect

         13  the amazing diversity of street wall and building

         14  topology found throughout Williamsburg and

         15  Greenpoint.  We got a strict, monotonous, contextual

         16  building envelope.

         17                 We asked that the rezoning provide

         18  provisions and incentives for adaptive reuse.  We

         19  are losing existing buildings at astronomical rates.

         20                 We asked that the rezoning protect

         21  our historic resources.  And together today we might

         22  finally have an opportunity to take a first step

         23  towards achieving that important goal.

         24                 On the merits, the Austin, Nichols

         25  would be landmarked, as of course, we are here, once
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          2  again, taking time from our busy days, standing or

          3  sitting, hat in hand, as eloquent evidence of the

          4  potential power of money special interest, evidence

          5  of potential enrichment of the few, or of the

          6  benefit of the many.

          7                 I beseech you not to let this happen,

          8  to do the right thing, and to designate this

          9  landmark.

         10                 And I would like to add in my last 30

         11  seconds, that as a Community Board 1 member, I

         12  believe there is a misnomer in the room that we

         13  voted against this designation, and we actually did

         14  not vote on this designation.  The Executive

         15  Committee of Community Board 1 did.  There was a

         16  staged walk- out by certain faction in the community

         17  to not leave us with a quorum, so we could not take

         18  a vote.  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         20  much.  Okay, we are adjourning the hearing today at

         21  the request of a number of members that were not

         22  able to be here, who are very interested in this

         23  property.

         24                 As you know, out of the seven members

         25  that are usually here, three are ill and were unable
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          2  to make it.  In fact, two of them are here usually

          3  promptly, on time.  And we had to wait to get

          4  started.  So the hearing is adjourned, we will pick

          5  up on this on Tuesday, bright, is it going to,

          6  Chris, 9:45 a.m. It is right before the Land Use

          7  Meeting.  I thank you all for coming today, and have

          8  a good rest of the day.

          9                 (Hearing adjourned at 2:05 p.m.)

         10                 (The following testimony was read

         11  into the record.)

         12

         13  Testimony of:

         14  Phillip Kellogg

         15  Chairman

         16  Fort Greene Association, Inc.

         17

         18                 Dear Council Member Felder:

         19                 This is to express the vigorous

         20  support of the Fort Greene Association for the

         21  retention of Individual Landmark status of the above

         22  building and strong opposition to the possibility of

         23  reversal of its recent designation.  Such a step

         24  back would, we feel, be reflected adversely in other

         25  areas of the City, helping to undermine the
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          2  structure of landmarking and preservation.

          3                 Designed by Cass Gilbert, leading

          4  20th Century architect, Austin, Nichols recalls

          5  Brooklyn's vital part in the historic role of

          6  manufacturing in this country.  This endangered gem

          7  has a quiet grandeur that demands and deserves the

          8  respect of her 21st Century caretakers.  It speaks

          9  for continuing its service in a somewhat different

         10  but equally appropriate manner to its surrounding

         11  community without having to sacrifice its

         12  architectural character.

         13                 The popular phrase "adaptive reuse"

         14  could hardly apply more effectively than here and

         15  that has been seen in the type of conversion taking

         16  place at Austin, Nichols.  Housing needs are great,

         17  and with the texture of nearby Williamsburg being

         18  gradually rewoven culturally, commercially and

         19  residentially, designation of Austin, Nichols brings

         20  additional stability.  Working with the Landmarks

         21  Preservation Commission, certainly ways can be found

         22  to enhance the owners' investment while saving the

         23  building's historic fabric and handsome appearance.

         24                 Designation, we feel strongly, is a

         25  win/win for all.  We urge you to retain the
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          2  Individual Landmark Designation of Austin, Nichols.

          3                 Sincerely,

          4                 Fort Greene Association, Inc.

          5                 Phillip Kellogg, Chairman.

          6                 (Hearing concluded at 2:05 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 22nd day of November 2005.

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

                                   ---------------------

         24                          PAT WTULICH

         25

                                                            129

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify the
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